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SENATE, No. 441 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

PRE-FILED FOR INTRODUCTION IN THE 1974 SESSION 

By Senator READLESTON 

AN AcT C'OliC('T'lling tlw Pduea!io11 of hmulil'a]lpP<l childn'n, aml 

nmetuling ~l'<'tinnH lKA :·11;-G, IS.\ :·W-·1:!, IHA Afi 14- antllRA :f1H--:l 

and HUpph•JIU'II!illl-\' t•hapl<'r ·hi or 'l'i!h· IHA or !liP NPW .lt•I'HI'Y 

Statutes. 

1 BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and (leu!'ra/ Assembly of the State 

2 of New Jersey: 

1 1. N. ,J. R. 18A :4(i--(i i11 amendPd to l'l'nd aH followH: 

2 18A :4li-fi. liiach hoard of l'ducn!ion ~hall itlt•ntify and IIH<'-ertain, 

:l aNmrding to rulPH pn•H<'ribed by tlw t•ommis~ion<'r with tlw approval 

4 of tlw Stat!' hoard, what cliildn'n lwiwf'Pn Uw ageH of 5 and 20 

!i in the public schools of the district, if any, cannot he properly ac-

6 commodated through the school facilitie~ uHually provided because 

7 of handirapR. 

K Ju addition, !'tf<:lt hoard of l'ducation shall also idl'1tfify and 

!l "·'~'1'-rlain whl'-u dt'<'lucd llJIJ!I'OJH"iale by !he cowmissionl'r and ru·-

10 m.-rliHf/ io ntlt·s 11romnlgat1:d by the commi.~siotwr with the approval 

11 of the State board, those children between the ages of 3 and 5 who 

12 requ.ire and 1rho would be benefited by a special education program 

13 which may prevent their handicap from becoming more debilitating. 

1 2. N.J. S. 18A :46-13 is amended to read as follows: 

2 18A :46-13. It shall be the duty of each board of education to 
3 provide "approved special education programs" including suitable 

4 facilities and programs of education for all the children who are 

5 classified as handicapped undrr this chapter except those so mcn

G tally :etarded as io be neither educable or trainable. The absence 

7 or unavailability of a special clnRs facility in any district shall not 

8 be construed as relieYing a hoard of education of the responsibility 

9 for providing education for any child who qualiftes under this 

10 chapter. 
EXPLANATION-Matter enclosed in bold-faeed brackets [thuol in the above bill 

is not enacted and is intended to be omitted in the law. 
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11 A board of education is not required to l'''o\·icle any further 

12 educational prog-ram for children who ha\·e been admitted to the 

1:1 :lfariP H. KatzPnh>~ch School for the Deaf hut ~hall h<• rc•qnin•d to 

14 furnish necessary daily transportation ilfoll<ia~· through Friday 

15 to and from the school for nonboanling pupil,; wht'll ,;nch trmt>'· 

16 portation is approvrd by the count~· snperintl'JHI<•td of schools in 

17 accordance with such rules and rPgulations as tltc• State hoard shall 

18 promulgate for such transportation. 

1 3. N. ,J. S. 18A :46-14 is amc•JH!l'<l to rC'ad as follows: 

2 18A :46-14. 'l'he faeilitirs :md programs of t-dncation required 

:1 under this chaplt•r shall be prm·idl'd hy mw or mon· of th<' following: 

4 a. A special class or classl's in the district, including a class or 

5 classes in hospitals, ronvalC'scent homl's, or othl'r institutions; 

6 b. A special class in the public schools of another district in this 

7 State or an adjoining or nearby State; 

8 c. Special schcdulin_q, J!ragmming or a combination thereof; 

9 [c.] d . .Joint facilities inrluding a elass or elnsct•s in hospitals, con-

10 valesccnt homps or othPr institutions to IH' proYi<kcl h~' ngTl'<'nH'lll 

11 lwtween Olll' ot· more school distrids; 

1:l [d.] e. A joiulure commission program; 

13 [e.] f. A State of New Jersey operated program; 

14 [f.] g. Instruction at school supplementary to the other programs 

15 in the school, whcnc.-er, i11 the judgment of the hoard of education 

16 with the eonsPnt of the commissioucr, the handi<'apped pupil will 

17 be best R(']'ved there by; 

18 [g.] h. Sending childn•n capable of benefiting from a day school 

19 instructional prog-ram to printtely operated nonprofit day classes, 

20 in N cw Jersey or an adjoining- State or a nearby State and within 

21 400 miles of Trenton or, with the appron1l of the commissioner to 

22 meet particular circumstances, at a greatl'r distance from Trentou, 

23 the services of which arc nouc;celariau whPJW\'er in tlw judgmeut 

24 of the board of education with till' couseut of the <'OllllllissiouPr it. 

25 is impractical to provide S<'JTiCC'S pursuaut to subscctioll>' a., b., 

26 c., d., e., [or] for g. otherwise; 

27 [h.] i. Individual instruction at home or in school whenever in the 

28 judgment of the board of education with tho consent of the com-

29 missioner it is impracticable to pro.-ide a suitable special education 

30 program for a child pursuant to subsections a., b., c., d., e., f., [or] 

;n g. or h. otherwise. 

32 "\Vhene\·er any child shall lw confinl'd to a hospital, convalescent 

33 home, or other institution in New Jersey or an adjoining or nearby 

34 State and is enrolled in an education program appro\·ed under this 
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[a dirk] clwJiler, tlw hoanl ol' <'tlncntion of tht· <li,trid in whi<·h th<' 

<•hi!tl i> t]OJlli<'ilP<] ~hall pay lht' tuition of ,.;;1id <'iltid ill IJH' ,;ppciaJ 

t•ducnt iou progT<Illl. 

'l'IH· hoard ol' t•thwaliolllll:t.l al,;o l':lrlli,h[: (<!)]Ill<' i':H·ililit•,.; 111' 

program' proYidPd in thiR [arlil'i<'] dl!tJ!Ia lo a11y pt•r,:on O\'Pr ih•· 

age of 20 who dol'~ 11nt hold a diploma of n high ''·hool apprond i11 

thi' State or i11 any other S!n!t• in the U11ikd :-itales[, (h) snitahlP 

::pprowd faeilities and programs for l'hi!dr<'ll lllldt•r tht• agt• of il]. 

'!'/,.board of cduca/iun iiffi.IJ, 1111rl if 11 loco/ cl1ild study I I'll /It so 

recomJJ/Cuds ond the commissioner 11Jipror!'s. slfllil. Jll'orid,· for 

children wudcr the age of !i suito/,fc .facilities.J!ro,rtroms 11111/ sp,·ciol 

services, in respect to which [11cili.ties, prugnuns or scrrices 11rc 

proridcd in tltis chapter for 1·hildrcu !i yem·s of llfll' and orer. 

4. N .. T. S. lSA :08~2 i' amemled to read aH follow': 

2 lSA :GS-2. !<'or the pnq>osps of this arli<·le, tm!P" th .. eontexl 

:! el<:ady n·quin" a <lifl'en•Jd m<'aning: 

4 "l{eHi<lPnt <'III'ollnwlll" ·shall mean the JIIIIIIh<•r of l'nll-tinit· 

5 pupils who arc n•sident~ of the district and an• enrollP<I i11 da;· 

G schools on the last school day of SPptember or on the last school 

7 d:Jy of 1\Iay during the school year in which calculation of aid is 

il made and are attending the puhlie schools of the district or a school 

9 district or State college d<'lllonstratioll school to which the district 

10 of n'':idPucc pays tnitio11; pro1·it!Pd, that no dish·iet shall cotmt in 

11 :ts l'HrollmPJtt any pupil n•gnlarl~· attPnding 011 a full-time basis 

12 a county yocational school in the s~mw county. 

1 :l "\YPig;ht P<l pupils" shall mPan the 11\lmlwr of n•sidPnt pupib 

l.J. multipliPd hy tlJP following tmils: 

~.-. 

1(i 

Kill<krg:td<•n pnpils .75 

i<}]elnPntar:, pnpils (grade• 1 through grade' fi) 1.0 

17 SPn'nth and eighth-grad<' pupils not in ap-

18 proved middle schools or junior high 

19 Rchools appron•d by the Commissioner of 

20 F}ducation 1.15 

21 Pupils in approYed middle schools and in ap-

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

2R 

29 

proved junior high schools 1.25 

Five and 6-ycar high school pupils (equated 

to full-time) 1.275 

Senior and 4-:vear high school pupils 

(equated to full-tinw) 1.3 

Vocational school pupils in ,·oeational schools 

or dassPs (PiflHlt<'d io full-time) 2.0 

EY<ming s<'hool pupils (<'quat•·d to full-time) 1.0 

units 

units 

units 

units 

units 

units 

unitR 

unitH 
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:10 Accr<'dih•d rvening high sehool pupils and 

:\1 ]lll]li!H in po~t-gnttltHJ.tP high K!\hoo) PIHKRPH 
... , .. ~ (<'qll:ilt·d to f'ull tinll') nnitH 

,,.. ".\1•'11!' ,•hildn•ii'' ,.h:dlnH':Iil th•• <"hildn•u :>.~•·d ;, to 17 inl'inHin•, 

:!.J. iu fumilicH re;:iding· in thP Hchool district and r·pc•eiving ai1l through 

35 payments under a progrnm of aid to families with clopcndcnt 

36 children certified to the commissioner by the Department of Institu-

37 tions and Agencies. Each such ehild shnll be wrightcd by an addi-

38 tioual .75 units iu counting tlw nnmher of weighted children for the 

39 Hchool district. With respect to regional school districts and their 

40 component districts, AFDC children shnll be allocated among the 

41 regional district and its component districts in pi'oportion to tho 

42 number of resident pupils in each of them as determined from the 

43 enrollment on the last school day of September. 

44 "Classification of school districts" shall mean the classification 

4ii of school districts to be established pursuant to N. J. S. lSA :58-3 

4li in one of the following categories: 

47 II. NonopPrnting district, bl'iug Olll' whidt 0Jll'l'a1l'H no H<'hoolH or 

4H i1H own; 

49 b. Ba~ie dist.rid, lwing one in whir.h on!' or more ;:clwols are 

50 operated and which meets all basic requir!'ments of school law; 

51 c. Limited district, being a basic di~trict which meets sueh other 

52 criteria as shall be prescribed by law; 

53 d. Intermediate district, being a district which meets all require-

54 ments of a limited district and which meets such other additional 

55 eriteria as shall be prescribed by law; 

56 e. Precomprehensive district, being a district which ~eets all 

57 requirements of an intermediate district and which meets such 

58 other additional criteria as shall be prescribed by law; or 

59 f. Comprehensive district., being a district which meets all re-

60 quirements of a precompreh!'nHive district and which operates 

Iii Plhwationnl program>< t•hanw1Pri\'.Pd h~, their dh•crsit.y and high 

(j:J quality as pr't'Hl'l'ih!•d f'or Htll'h t•lasHilit•atinn h~· law. 

li:l "J<;qnalizcd valuations" Hhall mean the equalir.cd valuation of 

G4 the taxing district or taxing districts as certified by the Director 

G5 of the Division of Taxation on October 1 for the year in which the 

66 calculation of aid is made. In the event that the equalized table 

67 certified by the Director of the Division of Taxation shall be re-

68 vised by the Division of Tax Appeals on or before January 15 of 

69 the next succeeding year, such revised valuation shall be used in 

70 any recomputation of aid. 

71 "State average valuation per weighted resident pupil" shall 
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ml'an tlw qnotiPnt rP~nltin~ from di\·idin~ the total l'!JtlHliZl'd 

Yalna!ion~ in tlw StatP of Nt>\\" .JPJH'Y as C'<'rtifil'tl by the Director 

of tlw DiYisiou of T:nntion on Oetolwr 1 by fllt· total nnmhl'r of 

WPig·ht·d pupils or tht• St:tfl' ('lliOl!l'd Oil tht• last sdwol day of 

St•ptem hPr. 

"Mininmlll s11ppol'i aid" shall IIH'ail tlH' pnlthll'! of t!JP nmubcr 

of rcsidl'nt wei~h!Pd pupils of !IH• sl'hool distril'f and ow• of the 

following rates : 

Not ll'RS than $100.00 in a nonoJwratin~ district, 

N" ot lesH than $110.00 in a basic district, 

Not less than $122.50 in a limi!Ptl district, 

Not ]pss than $1:li>.OO in an inlt·rnlt'diatt' tlist.rief, 

No! IP~s than $147.50 in a pn·t·ouq:n·ht•nsiYt' dist rid, or 

Not h•ss than $1fi0.00 in a eomprPht•nsin· distril'f. 

"fkhool diRtrict guarnntced Yaluation'' shall mean thl' product 

of the number of n·sideut weighted pupils of the school district 

and onP of the following rates: 

Not Jpss than $:l0,000.00 in a basic distriet, 

Not Jpss than $:1:1,750.00 in a limitPd district, 

Not less than $:17,500.00 in an iutennl'diate di~trid, 

Not le~s than $41,250.00 in a precomprehen~in• district, or 

Not less than $45,000.00 in a comprehensiYe district. 

"Current expense budget cost" shall mean the total appro

priation for current rxpensl's including the RnlariPH of the sec

re-tary of the hoard of C'tlucn1 i011, thr C'nstotliau of school moneys, 

pri nl'i pal H. tPal'hPrH, janitors, nH·tlil'al inHpl't•lors antl truant ollictH's; 

l'nPl f.pxf.hooks, school supplit•s, flags, transporla1ion of pupils, 

1ui!ion of pnpils aitending 8ehools in o1her districts with the eon

sent of the board, school lihrariPH, truant schools, insurance, re

pain and renewals to buildings, furniture, equivm<'nt or apparatus, 

and other iucidrntnl expenses of the schools. 

JO:l 

104 

105 

"Xl't opPrHting budget" shall mean the balaucC' after deduct

ill[!; all <'stimn!Pd re\·enue from the cnrrPnt Pxpense budget, l'X

eept the amonut to lw raised h;~· local taxation and incenti\·e equal

lOG ization aid apportionrd. 

107 "Ap•Jro\·Pd sp<'f'ial [class] education progmm" shall mean a 

108 class for physically-handicapped or mentally-retarded children, and 

109 all o:her classes for atypical pupils approved by the commissioner. 

110 "A typical pupils" shall nwan pupilH who :u·p [physically-handi-

111 t•apprrl or nwntally rPta rdrd] das.,ijil'rl as handit:rtflfU'd pltrS/Irrnf to 

112 rn·lil'le -1 of diajJier I(; of this Tiflr and who are [not accommodated] 

11:~ in nerd of an l'dltmfiouol proqram u>hi,-h cannot be J!I"OI>idrrl through 

114 the school facilitieR and services usually provided for normal pupils 



115 and shall incll!dc luuulintpperlt'IIJ!ils of the llfl' s ;! 1/irollf!l' :!II -'!<'!Irs. 

116 iul'lu.<iuc. 

117 "En•ning Rchool pnpi!H" ~hnllmcan pupiL• <'ltrolled i11 <'1'<'11111'~ 

118 schools, except in classes for forPign-horu r••sid<•Jds. ot· iu n1 ·a 

ll!J tiona] sclwols, or iu aecre<lilrd PI'Plling l1igiJ :-;,·l!oo!:-;, or iu .;dtools 

120 known as adult schools. 

121 "Accredited evening hig-h school pupih;'' ,Jtall l!lt'UII pupiL< 

122 tmrolled in au apprOI'Pd <'l'<'tling high sehool. 

1:2·:~ "Vocational sehoul pupils'' shnlltut•an pupils t·nrollt·<l i11 •·our,·,, s 

124 o!' study for vocalio11al edtH·atiou appron•d by !Ill, ~Halt• hoard. ~o 

125 district slmll count in its enrollrnen( an:> pupil n•gnLtrl.1· att<'Jidiug· 

126 011 a full-time basis a county \·ocatimtal :-whool in tlw ,amc county 

127 regardless of whether or not tuition is paid for such pupil, but snell 

128 pupil shall be weighted :111d roull!Pcl in tlw dPlPnnination of State 

12!J aid in the coun!.y vocational ,;chool operating a full-time program. 

130 "Aid per re~ident weighted pupil" ~hall lllt'<lll the' tjUotiPilt 

131 resulting from dividing !he 'um of the minimum support aid and 

132 the incentiYc Pqualization nid alloeatcd to the sdwol di~trict by the 

13:3 number of weighted pupils on the last ~chool day of SPptember. 

134 "Day school cost per pupil'' shall mean the mean annual curreut 

135 operating eost of educating pupib, as clPtNmined by the commts-

13(i siom;r with the approval of the board. 

137 "Aid per resident pupil" shall mean the quotient resulting- from 

138 dividing the sum of the minimum support aid and the incentive 

139 equalization aid allocated to the district by the number of resident 

140 pupils enrolled on the last school day of September. 

141 "State aid" shall mran the sum of minimum support aid, incen-

142 tive equalization aid, transportation, rcimhursPm<·n!, atypical pupil 

143 reimbursenwH!, county aid ami t·.oun!y \'Oeatioual sc•.bool ai<l, as 

144 determined pursuaut to this artic!P. 

1 5. This act shall take effect immecliat<•ly. 

S'l'ATE?IlENT 

Cha]Jter 46 of 'ritle 18A present!~- JH'ol·ides for the education of 

handicapped children between the ages of 5 aJHl 20 years. The 

purpose of this bill is to provide a head start for handicapped pupils 

when they have reached the age of il years, since early education 

and treatment of handicaps ma,v substantially lessen the bnrden 

which the handicapped child may be under when he reaches normal 

school age. The additional education given to handicapped pupils 

pursuant to this bill would receive the benPfit of StatA aid as 

presently provided for atypical pupik 

.. 



SENATOR STEPHEN B. WILEY (Chairman): We will 

open the public hearing on Senate Bill No. 441. 

My name is Stephen Wiley, Senator from the 

23rd District and Chairman of the Senate Education 

Committee. I will be joined, from time to time during 

the day by one or more other members of the Senate 

Education Committee. I know that some are unable to 

make it at all. In one case, for reasons of health. 

However, our proceedings are being recorded and the 

transcript ~ill be available to and considered by all 

members of the Committee, as well as by others affected 

by or interested in this legislation. 

We have a list of people who have requested 

to be heard. We will endeavor to hear everyone. The 

Sponsor of the Bill is Senator Beadleston who will be 

our first witness. We will then hear from Dr. 

Ringelheim of the Department of Education. Then we 

have a list which has been assembled by Mr. Muller, 

Staff Aide to the Committee, of people who have requested 

to speak and they will be called in the order in which 

they made their request. 

There are in one or two cases special requests • 

for instance, Mr. Dolan and Mr. Elmer have requested to 

be heard after 3 P.M .. 

We will conduct this hearing for about four 

hours and fifteen minutes today. We will break at 11 

o'clock for about ten minutes~ and break from 12:30 to 

2 o'clock and then resume until about five minutes of 

four. I hope that we can get everybody in during that 

period of time. If not, we will schedule a further time 

so that we can hear everyone. 

Let me point out, how you present it and what 

you say and to what extent is your determination. However, 

1 



if you would like to abbreviate or summarize a written 

statement, we would be delighted to have your written 

statement and have your summary or highlights of it, 

and that would help us expedite matters. But I don't want 

to impede or cut down anyone unnecessarily. 

With that, let's start with the Senator from 

Monmouth County who needs to be introduced to no one, 

least of all to me. I had the pleasure and honor of 

serving this State in another capacity, some years ago, 

and used to watch him with admiration. I think he sat 

back there where Mr. Scagnelli is sitting, as the 

Minority Leader and at various times as Majority Leader 

and Speaker of this House, and now has played similar 

roles in the Senate, has been a leader in many areas 

of endeavor in the State of New Jersey, and I needn't 

tell you that the area that we are talking about today -

that is, the handicapped children - has been one of the 

areas of his special accomplishment. So it is a 

privilege to have you here before us, Senator and we 

are delighted to hear from you. 

A L F R E D N. B E A D L E S T 0 N: Thank you, 

Senator, for your kind remarks. 

Despite what we read and what we hear, New Jersey, 

with the possible exception of our institutions, both 

the correction and mental health, leads or is about to 

lead in the actions we're going to take in the field 

of mass transportation and I think in every area of 

government. This is true from our model court system, 

our Constitution which is without equal, right on down 

through every branch of government and every aspect of it. 

That's not to say we're perfect, of course. 

We're going to continue to strive, as we have, to 

improve every area. But certainly New Jersey leads in 

2 



the field of special education for the handicapped. 

Again there is much to do, principally in 

the administrative field. I think, first of all, to 

implement the bond issue that was passed last November, 

which we're in the process of doing~ improving our 

teacher techniques through research in the teaching 

field~ overview of the existing programs in our schools~ 

in the field of enforcement of what the law mandates, 

about which there's no question. But in the field of -

well, I might add also in that other aspect, earlier 

vocational prcgrams, before high school, for those 

children who are handicapped, all of which can be done 

in an administrative way. 

In the legislative area, I think there are 

three fields that are of principal concern. One of 

these, unfortunately, may have to wait and was 

originally a part of the pending bill, in years past, 

and that was 12 months, year round education for the 

handicapped to give them the additional help which 

they so obviously need. That may have to be deferred 

because of the vast cost and, therefore, was deleted 

from this bill, and may have to wait until we get 

on with the question of thorough and efficient education 

and its costs. 

Two other areas,one of which is not the concern 

of this Committee is included 1n a bill that I've 

introduced or. the creation of a risk register so that 

we can know how many children we have to cope with at 

what age, one, two, three and four, so that when they 

get to school age we will be prepared to meet them. 

I am hopeful that we will be able to get another 

Committee of the Legislature in the Senate to act upon 

that and to get it enacted despite the fact that we have 

3 



run into somewhat resistance. 

The other is the matter contained in this 

bill, and that is what I would call early start, that 

lS the early, three and four years of age, education 

of the handicapped child. 

The question here is that with that early 

advantage they could possibly at a younger age than 

now in many respects and possibly in the case of them 

going to school at the five year age may be able to go 

right into the regular class program. It's being 

done, and it can be done, elsewhere. 

Now this bill before you - and I might add 

ln that connection, Senator, I have given to Mr. 

Muller a Senate Committee Substitute for this bill 

becaus~ in all honesty, the original bill was poorly 

drafted and was deficient in many respects. I won't 

bore you with the details but they had not incorporated 

in it amendments to the law that are already on the 

books; they had deleted certain sections that I had 

asked to be deleted but, in so doing, they deleted 

everything in the section and the section is now meaning

less, etc., etc. I won't bore you with it. 

So that the Committee Substitute before you 

does essentially what the original bill does but I 

now think this is a perfect document as against the 

defective one. 

In any event, in that connection too, you may 

want to consider something that I have not done in this 

bill and that is in the second section at the end. For 

some strange reason, in an earlier amendment, we had 

language in there to the effect that any special 

educational facility or program for 20 year old children 

will continue through the school year. Why that was 

tacked on in an earlier law, at the end of a paragraph 
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dealing with the Marie Katzenbach School for the Deaf, 

no one will ever understand. I would suggest that it 

might be wise to take this Committee Substitute and 

delete that and then reinsert it at the end of the 

first paragraph of that section, or as a separate 

paragraph right following the first paragraph. That, to 

me, would make a great deal more sense because, as 

written in the existing law, I think it's in an improper 

place. But that's something for your Committee to do, 

if it chooses, and I suggest you consider it. 

SENATOR WILEY: You're speaking of section 13. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Section 13, yes. At the 

end of it, it says the language which I mentioned, which, 

incidentally, was completely omitted from the printed 

copy, the original printed copy, - again, Lord knows why, 

but it was. I've had it typed in here and you may want 

to move that. 

In any event, this bill states - if you leave 

out all the other changes and you look at page 3 of the 

Committee Substitute -- it says: "The board of education 

may, and if a local child study team so recommends and 

the commissioner approves, shall,provide for children 

befween the ages of 3 and 5 suitable facilities, 

programs a~1d special services in respect to which 

facilities, programs or services are provided in this 

chapter for children 5 years of age and over." 

Now, that language is both permissive and 

mandatory and is inserted for a very good reason. Not 

only are many 3 to 4 year old children perhaps not 

ready to go ~o school for not only reasons of the child 

but in cases of the parents where they have gone through 

some emotional crises as a result of the handicap of the 

child, but we're worrying about the cost of this program. 
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I have a fiscal note which I approved the 

other day and which I expected would be here for your 

Committee, which says that the program, if fully 

implemented, could cost approximately $13 million. 

And $13 million is a lot of money in the State today, 

as you and I well know, particularly with our many 

other problems. And this language would give some 

control over that expenditure, as well as over the 

other problems that I've mentioned as to the 3 and 4 

year old child. And I would suspect, therefore, that 

the cost of this program would be approximately half, or 

less, of the estimated $13 million with the controls 

envisioned here by the Commissioner and the child 

study teams. 

But I am not concerned about the dollars 

being $8 million or $13 million, or whatever, because 

I think, in the writing of fiscal notes, people 

overlook the potential of the law itself and what it 

might do in the way of diminishing costs in the future. 

I am convinced that with early start programs, such 

as this, for the 3 and 4 year old child, you're going 

to have many of them at an early age fold back into 

the regular classroom situation, diminishing, therefore, 

the amount of children in the special educational 

classes that we see for the 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 year 

olds and upward. 

So that to estimate the cost at any million 

dollars fails to take into account that this program, 

in the long run, could conceivably save the State 

money, not cost the State money. And I think that's 

a very important consideration because, after all, 

that's not the purpose of the bill. The purpose of 

the bill is to help the .children but, in so doing, I 
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think it's going to have materially an effect of that 

kind on the future costs to the boards of education. 

Essentially, Senator, that is the purpose 

of the bill, that is the background information I can 

give you, and if you have any questions I will be 

glad to ans¥.-er them. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much, Senator. 

As the language at the end of section 13, the 

new language that you referred to, reads, I take it 

it would mean that there is an obligation on the part 

of the schools, under this, to make the facilities 

and programs available. On the other hand; there is 

not, at least in a general way, an obligation on the 

part of the parent or on the part of the child to attend 

the school. In that sense, it's required that the 

schools be available but it is permissive on the part 

of the parent as to whether the program would be utilized. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: I would assume so, yes, 

Senator. 

SENATOR WILEY: There are a couple of wrinkles 

on that as I read it, one that theoretically if a child 

study team recommended that a particular child have a 

course of education at ages 3 and 4 and 5, and if the 

Commissioner approved, then under this bill the obligation 

would be upon the school board to provide that. And I 

take it, the parent would be obliged to cooperate. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Well, I think you have to 

read this law in connection with the overall law on 

education which mandates school attendance during 

certain ages. And I don't think that this bill in any 

way contravenes that. When a handicapped child reaches 

the mandatory attendance age, he would have to~ prior 

to that, I think it's optional with the parent. You 

certainly can't avoid it when he reaches - what is it, 6 
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or 7? 

SENATOR WILEY: Six. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Six. He must go. Right. 

SENATOR WILEY: Prior to that, would you regard 

this as mandatory or in any case? 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: I would not say upon the 

parent~ mandatory upon the school when it either opts 

or when the Commissioner determines for the school to 

provide the facility but not mandatory upon the parent 

until the child reaches the mandatory school age of 6. 

SENATOF WILEY: This would be the difference 

between free public education and compulsory education. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Correct. 

SENATOR WILEY: We might consider that, with 

regard to the ·language, just so it's clear in everyone's 

mind. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: I think you would find it 

would not in any way affect the mandatory school age 

law. It's an option rather than any change in that. 

SENATOR WILEY: The number of children affected. 

I have seen some figures on it. Do you have figures, 

Senator, as to the number you feel would be in these 

age ranges who might qualify? As I understand it, we 

have about a million and a half. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Unfortunately, Senator, 

that's contained in the fiscal note which I had hoped 

to have down from upstairs and will ultimately get 

here but I don't have it at hand. It's being typed up, 

I presume. 

SENATOR WILEY: Fine. I'm sure Dr. Ringelheim 

has some estimates of the number of people involved. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Yes, I think he has. 

SENATOR WILEY: The bill would be effective 

immediately, as now drawn, which I suppose would mean at 
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the beginning of the next school year. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: That is correct. This 

is contained in many bills. The attorneys have ruled 

that that means at the next taking effect of whatever 

law is involved. In this particular case, the school 

law, which would be next September. The fact that it 

says 11 immediately 11 doesn't mean classes are going to 

start in May, it means they start in September • 

SENATOR WILEY: And the $13 million, or half of 

it, as the case may be, is the State cost? 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: That's the State cost. 

SENATOR WILEY: So one thing we would have to 

bear in mind, from the fiscal point of view, is at 9:30 

last night, in the room below this, the Appropriations 

Committee wound up its deliberations- and if it has 

anything to say about what the number is going to be, 

the resulting surplus in the budget is very, very narrow. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Bear in mind that in 

State aid of any kind there is a two year lag-between 

the law and the payment by the State. 

SENATOR WILEY: Did the fiscal note take that 

into account. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: No. Well, I think the 

fiscal note would state that effective a certain year, 

which is the year that you pay the State aid, that that 

would be the cost. 

SENATOR WILEY: That would be the cost. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Yes. There is a two year 

lag or 18 month lag, I am not certain_ exactly which. 

SENATOR WILEY: Do you have any feeling, Senator, -

here again fir. Ringelheim would perhaps have some information, 

but would ycu want to comment on the attitude of the local 

boards or the ability of the local boards to handle this 

kind of a program in terms of physical facilities and 

personnel? 
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SENATOR BEADLESTON: There is a surplusage, 

Senator, at the moment, luckily, of teachers for the 

handicapped, as there is for other teachers. Facilities 

are no longer really a problem, talking about classroom 

space. We're pretty well catching up now in New Jersey. 

I don't believe that we have either a classroom or a 

teacher problem involved here. 

SENATOR WILEY: What about the local fiscal 

impact, Senator? 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Well, of course, what the 

law says is that the State will pay 50% or $3,000, 

depending on whichever is the less. So you would 

have to assume that there would be a like amount of cost 

to the school board. 

SENATOR WILEY: In th~ case it would be a cost 

that would have to be incurred effective in September 

without any delay period. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Correct. 

SENATOR WILEY: Does that present a problem 

as far as the striking of the school budgets. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: Well, no, for the main and 

simple reason that if you again look back at the language 

where it says the school board may, they've either done 

that already in their program, or where the Commissioner 

approves he is going to have to give the approval effective 

as of a budget date. 

SENATOR WILEY: To what degree are local schools 

doing this now? Do we have any idea? 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: I wouldn't know the quarttity 

Senator. Perhaps Dr. Ringelheim can tell you, but very few. 

I might add, very effectively where it's being done, but 

very few. 

SENATOR WILEY: Underlying the concept is the 
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feeling or the determination that children at these 

tender ages who are handicapped are amenable to help. 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: There is no question 

~bout it, Senator. The Association for Children ~ith 

Learning Disabilities, the Association for Retarded 

Children already have preschool programs and their 

s·cJ.ccess has been fantastic. 

SENATOR WILEY: And have we had examples of 

that in New Jersey that we could refer to? 

SEN~TOR BEADLESTON: Oh, yes. The Association 

for Children with Learning Disabilities can tell you that. 

I believe they have a representative here. Yes, indeed. 

SENATOR WILEY: Fine. Do you have anything 

further, Senator? 

SENATOR BEADLESTON: No. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much, indeed. 

We do appreciate it. 

Dr. Ringelheim. 

A number of questions we have tossed to you, 

Dr. Ringelheim. Do you have a statement to present 

first, and then we will ask a few questions of you. 

D A N I E L R I N G E L H E I M: I am testifying on 

behalf of the New Jersey Department of Education. 

SENATOR WILEY: Why don't you identify yourself 

fully, your name and position in case there is anyone 

who didn't k'low. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Dr. Daniel Ringelheim, 

Deputy Asslstant Commissioner of Education,Branch of 

Special Education and Pupil Personnel Services. 

Senator Wiley, the Department of Education 

would like to thank you and the Senate Education Committee 

for the opportunity to provide testimony on Senate Bill 

No. 441. 
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New Jersey has been at the national forefront of special education for 

the handicapped. It was one of the first states to enact mandatory legislation 

for the handicapped in 1954, and has broadened its commitments continuously 

through legislative concern and respc'lnsivencss. As we explore the fjeld of 

present day programs for the handicapped, we will find that there are growing 

_emphases on the needs for early identification and intervention, to both amelia-

rate the severity of the handicapping condition and to eliminate the problem 

before the child enters the educational mainstream. There is convincing 

research evidence that early training benefits the deaf, the poverty impacted 

retarded, and the physically disabled child to a much greater extent than later 

intervention. Speech training, social and verbal stimulation, physical therapy 

and parent educational programs have all been extremely productive in reduc-

ing educational defects. Currently 31 states have enacted legislation requiring 

educational services for pre-school aged handicapped children. 

It is estimated that there are 12, 000 pre- school handicapped children who 

would potentially benefit from education programs and services in the State of 

New Jersey. The majority of these children would evidence moderate to severe 

problems, which would be readily identifiable. 

SENATOR WILEY: What are we talking about when we use the 

figure 12,000? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Three to five. The deaf, blind, physically dis-

abled, severe emotionally handicapped and the moderate to severe mentally 

retarded would be among the target populations. Identification and evaluation 

procedures, as contained in present rules and regulations of the State Board of 
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Education~ concerning special education, woul~ be irnple1nented and would 

serve as a safet,rual·d to assure progra1n quality and fiscal accountibility. 

Staffing of new programs should not present any serious problems re

garding irnplem.entation. Currently, there is an abundance of elementary and 

special education te;~chers available. Teacher training programs in early 

childhood education are already under way .in 13 New Jersey public and private 

colleges. 

New Jersey has had legislation which permits local school districts to 

establish pre-school programs and to be reimbursed at 50o/o of program costs. 

This permjssive legislation has not, however, been instrumental in providing 

the needed programs by local school districts. In the 1971-72 school year 

223 handicapped children ages 0-4 were provided an educational program under 

public school auspices. In the 1972-73 school year 233 handicapped pre-school 

children were provided a program. The increase of only 10 children in this 

vital program area strongly suggests that there are severe barriers to the 

implementation of such programs. 

In recent years parents have reported that School Boards, though positively 

inclined to establishing the prograrn, resisted such actions on the basis that a 

11 precedent would be set. 11 The clear meaning was that additional children would 

become eligible and the fiscal ramifications would be burdensome. 
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The limited nmnber of programs in the broad public sector has deterred 

othe; districts who felt that "pioneering" and "ta~ impacting" programs were 

too heavy a load for any single district to bear alone. A chronic proble1n~ to 

date, has heen Uw need for 1:r;uc::portation for handicapped childrer to progran1s 

currently provided by the Department of Institutions and Agencies, and other 

State and Federally supported pre-school projects. 

S 441 seeks to resolve these critical barriers to program in1.plementation 

and in the process provides the base fo·r a most vital program for the pre-school 

handicapped within the public schools. It assures that every identified pre- · 

school handicapped child age 3 to 5 be provided an educational program con1.rnen

surate with their needs. In our judgment this effort will not only greatly reduce 

the human misery of many children whose handicaps would defy adequate cor

rection later on~ but it should also have an i1npact on the costs to society for 

caring for many handicapped people whose disabilities could have been mitigated 

by early intervention. 

As is evident from these retnarlcs, the Department of Education is request-

ing that the Legislature act favorably on this legislation. It is also important 

to recognize that the Department has considered requesting such legislation as 

part of its deliberations on what is a "thorough and efficient" education for the 

handicapped child. The pass age of this bill will indeed serve the handicapped 

child in a qualitative and fiscally advantageous manner. 

In respect to the specifics of Senate Bill No. 441~ the Department would 

like to rec01nmend the following revisions: 
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They'll be technical, too. 

SENATOR WILEY: Would they be pertinent so far 

as this Committee Substitute is concerned or were they 

directed 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I haven't seenthe Committee 

Substitute so I really can't respond to that. 

What essentially the recommendations do is to 

clarify the mandated aspects of the 3 to 5, and also to 

add to the fact zero to three become permissive. 

I think the language of the present bill, not 

the substitute, is somewhat confusing, and I have a 

problem in one of the paragraphs which I will read from 

the testimony. 

These revisions would help clarify the intent 

of the legislation, that is to mandate programs for pre

school handicapped to age 3, and to continue permissive 

programs age 0 to 3. As the bill is presently written, 

there is a technical confusion in l8A:46-14 lines 43 to 47. 

The age set forth in this paragraph should be 3 in order not 

to conflict with l8A:46~6 and 18A:46-l3. 

In other words, at the beginning it indicates 

that it would be mandatory 3 to 5 and the latter section 

says it may -may be provided programs. So we're not 

sure what the intent was. Our assumption was mandated 3 to 

5 was the intent in both facilities and programs. 

Finally, the Department would also like to take 

this opportuni~y to recognize the present programmatic 

support of the Legislature in its extraordinary budgetary 

provision for the pre-school handicapped. In this regard, 

we would like to include in this testimony a copy of the 

report "Summary of Pilot Projects for the Education of 

Pre-school Handicapped Children", which is an accounting 

of the Department's efforts in utilizing the appropriated 

funds. The Committee has beengiven copies. 

15 



SENATOR WILEY: A copy of the green covered 

book. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes. 

SENATOR WILEY: How expensive have those pilot 

projects been, Dr. Ringelheim? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Well, in terms of the applications, 

they struck at a small portion of the people who applied 

for the State funds but the programs have been, on a 

general basis, most excellent. I suppose if one looks 

at the titlesof the projects, Bright Eyes and PEEP, and 

Project HAPPY, I would assume that may be some expression 

of the --

SENATOR WILEY: There•s certainly an optimistic · 

note there. 

Let me ask a few questions. 

You say 11 mandated program 11 • Let•s think about 

the obligation on the parent and the obligation on the 

school. You mean at least by that that the school must 

do it, the school must make it available. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: If a child is found to be 

handicapped and the parent desires a program -

SENATOR WILEY: The parent desires. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: The parent desires, yes, the 

school is obligated to provide. 

SENATOR WILEY: Is it thorough and effecient if you 

don•t take care of a handicapped child on the ground the 

parent doesn•t want you to? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Well, here you get into a legal 

issue. When you are getting down to ages 3 to 5, the 

question is what is the substitute kind of educational 

program that could be provided by a parent. And in 

terms of compulsory education and the issue of whether 

the parent has the right to withhold the child from an 

educational program. I think you would run into legal 
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problems. So I wouldn't want to answer whether it's 

thorough and efficient to require that a parent give up 

a child to a program. 

SENATOR WILEY: Your contention from your point 

of view is to make it submissive so far as the parent is 

concerned. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes. 

SENATOR WILEY: In other words, this is not 

compulsory education. You're making free public education 

.available for handicapped children 3 to 5, but it • s not 

compulsory. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: It's not compulsory on the 

part of the parent to take part. 

SENATOR WILEY: Does that present any practical 

problem in your judgment? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: No. 

SENATOR WILEY: Parents, if not universally, are 

almost universally willing to have help. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Usually if the child is found 

to be handicapped and a program is available and is 

readily providable, I would say the huge majority of 

parents would avail themselves of that opportunity. 

SEN~OR WILEY: Teacher training programs in 

early childhood education are under way in 13 New Jersey 

public and private colleges. I wonder about the supply 

of teachers and whether we're at the point where it would 

be adequate. If you were to go into this program, let's 

talk about numbers of children. You said, what? 12,000 

in the 3 to 5 age category. You're now reaching 250. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes. 

SENATOR WILEY: 

4 and 5 years of age. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: 

actually 3 to 5, 3 and 4. 

12,000 at three age levels, 3, 

We have 5 already. It's 

The 12,000 would be age 3 to 5. 
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Once they become 5 they come under the present legislation. 

SENATOR WILEY: Two years. we•re talking about 

ages 3 and 4. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Right. 

SENATOR WILEY: The number of handicapped 

children in public schools as a whole, you indicated at 

one time it was about 10% of the total. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: We.• re using the estimate of 

10% of the total. We have 1,500,000 in the public schools. 

The figures in terms of private and parochial schools 

are about 400,000 to 600,000, so we usually estimate about 

2 million children in school age education. 

SENATOR WILEY: I think you indicated you•re 

reaching about 133,000 in public schools? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Right. At the present time. 

SENATOR WILEY: Out of a total estimated 

population of 

DR. RINGELHEIM: In the public schools it would 

be 150,000. 

SENATOR WILEY: If you were reaching everyone. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Right. 

SENATOR WILEY: You•re getting about nine-tenths. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes. 

SENATOR WILEY: At any grad~ level there would 

be a little better than 100,000 children, is that right, 

in the public schools? A million and a half for 12 grades, 

13 grades, 110,000 or 120,000. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I think there is obviously a 

falloff in secondary, .so we usually have a pile-up 

SENATOR WILEY: In the higher or lower grades? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Well, actually, the compulsory 

school age between 5 and 16 and then it drops off 

dramatically. 

SENATOR WILEY: My question is, if we•re talking 
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about 120,000 per grade, at these lower grades, if there 

are 120,000 children and here we're talking only about 

the public school--element of it, at age 3 and another 

120,000 3.ge 4, if you apply your 10% factor to that, I 

wonder hovr you come out with this figure. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I see. For the most part, we 

don't apply the 10% factmr. I see the question. We 

don't apply the 10% factor between 3 to 5 below the age 

of 5. 

You have a number of issues 1n regard to the 

nature of handicapped children which differ 3 to 5 

when you go 5 to 20. One major group in the area of 

5 to 20 is for example speech handicap. How do I 

identify a 3 year old's speech handicap unless it's 

severe. And need of services from 3 to 5 becomes 

difficult. 

The mentally retarded, for example. That's 

why I have mentioned the fact that moderately to 

severely retarded children will be readily identified. 

But in the public schools 5 to 20 the majority 

of the children are mildly handicapped, mildly mentally 

retarded. These children would be almost impossible 

to identify 3 to 5. 

So what we did, we took the population pool of 

10% and then evaluated what children could be easily 

or more easily identified, 3 to 5, and you come up with 

children who are more severely handicapped. Some of 

those children would not benefit from early childhood 

intervention, in some cases. 

But the mild group, like learning disability, 

mildly mentally retarded, would not be readily identified. 

Mildly neurologically impaired would not be readily 

identified because you usually find those children as 

they interact with the educational program and are found 
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wanting. So you do not have the same mechanism of 

identification. 

SENATOR WILEY: Is this then only really half a 

solution, just about half the number of handicapped 

children. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Well, we're usually below 

5% in terms of our predictions here as to the number 

of children who we could identify and who would benefit. 

We're hedging on the 10%. 

SENATOR WILEY: The language of the bill is that 1 

if"the board of Education may, and if a local child 

study team so recommends and the commissioner approves, 

shall, provide" - that recommendation would be keyed not 

only to identification of the atypical pupils but the 

recommendation would reflect the ability of the program 

to do some good for that child. Is that right? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes. That is why in a sense 

the additional language -we've recommended that if we 

just change 5 to 3 in the first paragraph 18A:46-6 then 

the present rules and regulations which sort of stipulate 

all of these conditions in terms of evaluation and program 

would apply. So what the Department is suggesting is that 

the additional language really is not necessary, and it 

would help clarify the questions that are being raised now. 

And also on page 3 of the original bill, that 

the section that was cut out and substituted for, that it 

go back to what was o·riginally cut out and change 5 to 3, 

which would then say that 3 to 5 is mandated, comes under 

the present rules and regulations which require evaluation 

and program planning and recommendations. And then it 

would indicate suitable approved facilities and programs 

for children under the age of 3 would be permissive. 

SENATOR WILEY: We're talking again, just 

looking at the public schools here, of a quarter of a 

million children. What number of those children are 
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presently being seen in day care facilities in this 

State at that age? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: The day care handicapped -

I just got a figure of let me say 750 to 800 children. 

SENATOR WILEY: Are what? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: In day care under the 

Institutions & Agencies. 

SENATOR WILEY: Oh, handicapped children. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes. 

SENATOR WILEY: ·I was thinking of the total 

population. Our focus is 3 and 4 year old children in 

the State. A quarter of a million or maybe 300,000 

children. I wondered what portion of that total popula

tion is now i~ a setting where you would be able to 

detect shortcomings or handicaps. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Most of the pre-school 

children who are handicapped and whose parents are 

seeking programs and say have not found the program in 

the public schools have gone to Institutions & Agencies 

who do have a day care program for handicapped children. 

SENATOR WILEY: Okay. That's where they've 

been identified. I was going back to your remarks that 

many of thes? children, about half of them, have 

handicaps Lhat cannot be identified until they are in 

a situation where they interact with other children. 

Presumably if they were in a situation where they 

interacted under some supervision you would be able to 

detect the total population. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: No, because in a sense I was 

saying interact not with other children but also interact 

with an educational system and finding them wanting. 

In other words a person becomes handicapped in some sense, 

for example, the area of learning disability, only when 

you provide him with the learning opportunity. And usually 
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the planned learning opportunity which is the public 

school and public education - sometimes as a child 

interacts is found on that basis. Pre-school programs 

would not provide that kind of interaction. 

SENATOR WILEY: Do you think the public ought 

to provide education for all children at the age of 3 or 

4? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I would hedge on that. I 

think there is more evidence in the area of handicap 

to provide. In other words, we have much more research 

evidence to indicate that there is amelioration, that 

there is some elimination of handicap. I think the 

Head Start Program and the Early Intervention Program, 

on a general basis, do not have that substantiation in 

regard to long-term gain. Though I think it again 

is something to be considered. 

SENATOR WILEY: We seem to be coming at it 

from a couple of different directions. Day care is one 

we're hearing a great deal about these days. I've forfotten 

the number it reaches, fifteen or twenty thousand of 

these children, I believe, at the present time, in 

essentially a custodial way. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I think I misunderstood your 

last question on day care. 

Day care in many ways is not necessarily a 

program that is strictly for the child. It also relates 

to the fact that there is a working parent. There 

is need for the care of a child under a lot of conditions. 

And it doesn't necessarily mean that there needs to be 

a program for that particular child. What we're sug

gesting is that there is a need for an early intervention 

program that is defined, that is specified, that is under 

the aegis o~ an educational establishment for children, 

handicapped children, at this age. 
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SENATOR WILEY: Transportation, you say, is a 

chronic problem for handicapped children. How would 

you cope with that problem? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: The reason why I mentioned 

that is that for a long period of time we've gotten 

calls upon calls upon calls from parents who have 

available, for example, parent-run programs and pre-school 

who couldn't get their children to the program because 

of transportation problems. So they would call and ask 

us, is it possible for the public school to provide 

transportation? And we run into an interesting dilemma. 

If the public school provides transportation, they are, 

in a sense, commiting themselves to the payment of 

tuition at the same time. In other words, there would 

be some question as to why they could provide trans

portation and not provide the tuition to the program. 

So we've always run into the problem of saying 

legally the local school district has difficulty in 

providing transportation without also providing the 

tuition base. And local school districts, as I indicated 

here, have been reluctant to provide the tuition base 

because they felt if they provided for one there would 

be many more children who would be eligible. So, 

therefore, the financial impact would be burdensome. 

So we've been running with this problem in sort of an 

interesting dilemma that a program was available but 

there was nc mechanism by which local public schools 

could provide transportation without committing themselves 

to the tuition. 

So it has been sort of like a Catch 22. We 

would like to have provided the transportation to a 

program that did exist but the local school district 

was not about to pay the tuition. 

SENATOR WILEY: School districts now have the 
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authorit¥ to provide this kind of program and you've 

indicated that there is a very small number of children 

being served, 233, or whatever the number is. 

Would this legislation present the same problem 

to a degree or to what degree would it present the same 

problem in that the program is mandated only if the 

local school decides through its child study team that 

it's going to help a particular child or that it can 

help a particu~ar child; Recognize that if they're 

doing their job, theoretically they're making judgments 

on the basis of the child's need and the ability of the 

system to help, but to what degree is that going to be 

infused with financial restraints which might move them 

in the direction of attenuating this program? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: That's always a problem. The 

question is how and on what basis or what is the 

motivation for any particular decision. We hope 

that the professional decision in regard to the evaluation 

of a handicapped child and its need for a program and 

. the diversity of programs available would pretty much 

dictate the fact that practically every handicapped 

child would be provided. 

A parent has the right to challenge if they are -

or would be eligible to challenge if denied a program 

and the public school could not justify other than 

fiscal their reason for denying this program. 

In other words, under the present regulations, 

fiscal inability to respond to the need is not a 

defense. 

So there are mechanisms by which a parent 

can seek redress if this is denied, though I would agree 

that there is always in the minds of men some reason 

why under certain conditions they would not provide 

them. 
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SENATOR WILEY: Would you see it requiring 

a lot of supervision to be sure that the program was 

implemented? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I don't think any more 

implementation capability than we have now, because 

in many ways the parent organizations and private 

organizations have already provided service. So 

we know who they are and in many ways some capability 

of the child to benefit. So the initial group, most. 

likely it would be difficult to say that they could 

not benefit because they've been in some programs 

already. 

SENATOR WILEY: Could you summarize the 

.experience that has grown out of the pilot project 

and other studies as it reflects on the peculiar 

ability of teachers or of educational systems to 

help children with these moderate to severe handicaps.

! guess tLis is what we're talking about'- at ages 

3 and 4, ~nd to what degree, by not doing that, we're 

inhibiting our ability to do it at subsequent ages. 

Do you understand? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes. 

Well, not necessarily in terms of our own 

research but research in general, the area of the 

deaf has been critically involved because for the 

most part the area of the deaf programs have gone 

to zero. And the almost immediate intervention, 

stimulation, verbal stimulation, etc. have been 

introduced into literature and have been found to 

actually reduce the nature of the hearing loss. So 

you have a problem in the fact that if you reduce it 

at an earlier age you, in a sense, build on that 

reduction and you may have, instead of a profoundly 

or moderately deaf child, a mildly deaf child who 
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can benefit from a regular education. 

So, instead of providing a high-cost program 

for a specific deaf child with specific n~eds you•re 

moving that individual into the mainstream which, if 

we want to talk fiscally, is a benefit. 

There have been studies in the area of mental 

retardation, sometimes equivocal. There are some old 

studies by Kirk done in the early fifties. There was 

a study done in Massachusetts. And there has been a 

recent study, which I think has been overplayed so I 

don•t want to overemphasize it, in Milwaukee, which 

was the Early Stimulation Study, which indicated that 

children who ordinarily would have been declared 

handicapped, mentally retarded for the most part, in 

these studies, given early intervention,show up on 

a long-term basis - once they first make a major leap 

in terms of whatever is evaluated, in terms of their 

intellectual ability, maintain that leap in terms of 

progression through school. 

So in these studies they•ve indicated that 

actually you can eliminate a portion of the population 

who would be ordinarily considered mentally retarded. 

In the area of physically handicapped, I think 

there is just massive evidence to indicate that motor, 

visual motor needs are ameliorated by early intervention. 

So, therefore, the kind of complex progr~that you 

would have starting at one end like a CP Center or 

a CP Program would move off into less costly programs. 

You would have less physical therapy needs. You would have 

less occupational therapy needs as the child grows 

older. 

It•s the same issue in regard to the quality 

of general education, the quality of special education1 

as it relates to, for example, vocational rehabilitation. 
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The better job we do in training an individual in 

regard to general education, we·have less children 

in Special Ed. The better job we do in Special Ed, 

the less we need in a sense "rehabilitation." Because 

if the child has skills in regard to vocational schools, 

you don't have to rehabilitate him. 

We know the concept, but it is sort of like such 

a long-range issue fiscally'that we don't really take full 

cognizance of the fact that if you produce an independent 

individual at some later time, you have in a sense 

saved yourself all of the costs of an immediate impact, 

such as rehabilitation. This, I think, is critically 

true in the area of early childhood. There is too much 

to lose, in a sense, by not intervening, even if the 

a!?.clioration is a small percentage. 

SENATOR WILEY: In knowing what that perceptage is, 

we hate some statistical shortcomings in finding out 

what the therapeutic value has been. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: There is no question about this 

because the nature of the research and the extent of 

the research is unfortunately limited. I just mentioned 

three over a long period of time. Follow-up, quality 

research in regard to what are the exact benefits in 

regard to the child is not clearly established. I think 

the best area is ·the deaf. 

SENATOR WILEY: Mainstreaming is talked about these 

days as a desirable goal. What does mainstreaming mean, 

Dr. Ringelheim? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I just had a discussion on that 

at the Council for Exceptional Children Conference. 

There are a lot of meanings, too many meanings, unfortunate

ly. I have again a limited meaning to this. Main

streaming to me is an interaction program where the 

child is based in a regular class, is considered to 
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have special needs, and is provided the special needs 

while he maintains himself in a regular program. 

A lot of people have stretched that to indicate 

that any relationship of a child to regular education -

in other words, a child could be based in Special 

Education and then be provided Physical Ed., Music, 

Art, or interact in academic programs where they are 

competitive - as mainstreaming. So you have a broad 

view of mainstreaming as any interaction with the 

general education program. I would like to confine it 

to specific programs. For us, mainstreaming is a 

program like supplementary instruction where the child 

remains in the regular class and is provided programs 

supplementary to his regular class program. 

Another mainstream program would be a resource room 

where the child for a larger block of his time is 

provided special programs, but his base continues to 

be the regular class. That is where I cut off. In other 

words, I like to view mainstreaming within the context 

that the child base is regular class program. 

SENATOR WILEY: I take it you feel that is desirable 

as against the alternative of being entirely in a special 

class or predominantly in a special class. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Conceptually, yes. I think the 

general issue is that we have moved too solidly in 

New Jersey to the class concept - in other words, the 

issue of handicapped special class. I think the main

streaming concept sort of intervenes here. What we 

are suggesting is that the professionals who are eval

uating children go down the ladder in their ideas of 

how to program children. And the first is that the 

child is in need,and the first order of business would 

be "what should we provide in relation to the regular 

class," and "can he be competitive under those 
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circumstances?" 

The second order of business would be: "What can we 

provide on a larger basis while he remains in a regular 

class, which is the resource room, and can we provide 

this to him and make him competitive? If those two 

concepts are now removed, then you start thinking of 

the special class concept, and then continuously to 

say special class, but where is he competitive academically 

and otherwise in the regular program? So, therefore, a 

child can be based in a special class and, say, attend 

an arithmetic program within regular education where 

he is competitive. Then you go down the ladder to a more 

stringent special class where he is not competitive at 

all. And we have taken the position that all ancillary 

services be provided that child,wnl..Le he is in that 

special class. 

SENATOR WILEY: Well, whatever rung on the ladder 

you are - and let•s take the extreme example and put 

ourselves at the bottom - what is the drawback to the 

child? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: The interaction with a normal 

environment. The cliche, I think, is sometimes too overly 

stated and sort of too much cast aside. It is rather 

difficult to isolate an individual in a circumstance iG 

which everything about him is special and make him a 

product to be competitive in the eventuality whe::.e most 

of the things are not special - most of his environment 

will not be special. 

SENATOR WILEY: That is when you are weighing being 

at the bottom of the ladder in a totally special class 

DR. RINGELHEIM: What they call the isolated special 

class. 

SENATOR WILEY: 

streaming. 

(Continuing) -- as against main-
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DR. RINGELHEIM: Right. 

SENATOR WILEY: My question is: Is being in that 

special class, isolated, a drawback only because it would 

be better if the child were mainstreamed or is it 

intrinsically a drawback to be in a special class? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: This has been an area of great 

debate at the present time. It also falls in not only 

the isolation issue, but also the labeling issue. And 

I am again, unfortunately maybe, a little conservative on 

this basis. My own feeling is that a child in need of 

an isolated program is an identifiable child. In other 

words, you can come up with a child who in many ways 

it would be detrimental for him to be competitive in the 

mainstream. That is the child who should be in a 

special class. 

Again there has been - and I think it is more rhetoric 

than research -- there has been a great deal of dialogue 

that if you isolate a child, it will be to his detriment 

in the long run. But again,what is the nature of 

isolation? If we isolate in a special class, he leaves 

the school and he does interact with children elsewhere. 

So it is not a full isolation, for example, like an 

institution which may be full isolation. 

What are the critical variables related to how much 

effect does it have to be in a special isolated class? 

I think that is still up in the air. The reformers -

I don•t want to put myself as a non-reformer -- but the 

reformers are trying to press rather strongly that 

mainstream education is the answer. You get too much 

of this illusion -- as I say, I am basically conservative. 

I think there is a place for mainstreaming in the 

continuum of education. I don•t think there is any 

question. And you will find in our thorough and efficient 

proposal, we are talking for a continuum of educational 

services, that mainstream educational services, both 
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supplementary instruction and resource rooms, be required 

to be provided along with class. 

SENATOR WILEY: Would the reformers then say that 

isolation or special classes are not just comparably, 

but intrinsically, a drawback? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: A detriment. 

SENATOR WILEY: The obvious question, I suppose, 

then is under this bill must we reject the view of 

the reformers to endorse this bill because this bill 

would bring only the handicapped children into the 

schools at that age, and there would be no mainstream 

in which they could flow? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes, they could. In terms of the 

implemen~ation of this bill, we foresaw four basic 

programs that could evolve. One would be a program 

in which handicapped children are served within the 

public school facility on an isolated basis or an 

interaction with other children within a school facility. 

But it wou:d be basically a program for pre-school, 

tlandicappE.:d children. 

There would be a program for all handicapped children 

in the private sectbr, which exists now and could be 

contracted and paid for. 

The third model would be to have handicapped children 

individually in relation to pre-school children already 

established. In other words, there are pre-school 

programs for normal children in which you can place a 

handicapped child. So there is room for mainstreaming. 

And the fourth model is the parent-training model, 

which would be that if there were no program, if some

body were in the Kittatinny Mountains or something like 

that where it would be difficult for the chi'ld to 

move to a program, we would move the program to the 

parent and have the parent provide the educational 
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program with our training. 

SENATOR WILEY: The fourth was parent training. The 

third was where there is a class --

DR. RINGELHEIM: -- an existing, regular, pre-school 

for normal children, the child would have an opportunity 

to interact. 

SENATOR WILEY: The other two again? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: The other two are basically isolated 

programs, one within the public sector and one within 

the private sector, which are now in exisi:ence. 

SENATOR WILEY: Isolated for handicapped children? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: -- which would be for handicapped 

children. 

Then the school has the opportunity to develop the 

relationship within the school district as they relate 

to normal children in general. 

SENATOR WILEY: The only one of the four models where 

you would get any effective mainstreaming would be the 

third. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: would be the third. 

SENATOR WILEY: And that would be applicable only 

in a district where there was a program of pre-school 

education on an organized basis. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: There are so many private pre

school programs around that that would not. be a problem. 

The issue would be whether they would entertain the 

idea of integrating a handicapped child. 

SENATOR WILEY: But how widespread is pre-school 

education for ages 3 and 4 in the public schools? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Practically nil at this point. 

That is what I indicated. Public schools are not 

providing it. 

SENATOR WILEY: I am speaking here of the typical 

children, not the atypical. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Not at all. 
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SENATOR WILEY: Then I take it you don't get the 

opportunity for any mainstreaming within the walls of 

the public school. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Then the question would be, from 

3 to 5, would you want to co-mingle then1 with kindergarten 

children - or 4 to 5. 

SENATOR WILEY: Then you put a 3-year old with a 

5-year-old or a 6-year-old. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Then you get another problem. 

SENATOR ~viLEY: What is your view of that? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I think in terms of the handicapped, 

it would be difficult. So we are not looking necessarily 

for a pure mainstream concept in pre-school. 

SENATOR WILEY: It comes back to the question that 

strucJ~ me before. If mainstreaming is better than 

non-mainstreaming, that is understandable. Or if 

mainstreaming is better than isolatiun, that is under

standable. But is isolation undesirable only in 

comparison to mainstreaming or is it intrinsically un

desirable that handicapped children be put with just 

handicapped children at ages 3 and 4, as compared to 

nothing, as compared to what we have today, that is, 

staying home? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Again the question would be 

isolation versus isolation, with some socialization. 

In other words, the child individually at home, with 

parent, is in a sense isolated with his own handicap. 

SENATOR WILEY: And which is better? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I would prefer that he interact 

in some planned program within the public schools, 

with a teacher, with aids, and with other children, 

even if they are of the same handicap. 

SENATOR WILEY: I mean to suggest no conclusions. 

I have no expertise in it whatsoever. 
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DR. RINGELHEIM: Again I am hesitant to answer 

because in a sense the research evidence to answer that 

question, I think, is not available. The question is: 

Is a child under parent intervention, which is the child 

at horne, the handicapped child at horne without a program, 

better off than that child being provided an educational 

program with children of the same handicap? My guess 

would be that the program would be much healthier for 

the individual because the child is being looked at, 

has been evaluated, some kind of program procedure has 

been provided, and he would be better off. 

SENATOR WILEY: Presumably you are taking the child out of 

something. You are taking the 800 children who are now 

in day-care facilities out of that mainstream, so to speak, 

and putting them in an isolated program. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Well, they are basically in programs 

for the handicapped. 

SENATOR WILEY: Within the day-care centers? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Yes. 

SENATOR WILEY: Has there been any research, anything 

we could look to, to tell whether a child with, say, 

an auditory problem might be better off spending those 

x hours a day playing in the neighborhood with a range 

of children of varying abilities and competing a little 

bit or better spending those hours with children equally 

handicapped? Has there been any research as to the 

pluses and minuses? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Well again, the question is you 

are emphasizing the relationship with children of the 

handicapped and I would prefer to emphasize the fact 

that there is an educational program which meets his 

needs that is being provided, which under other circum

stances would not be available. 

SENATOR WILEY: How do you rate that third model 

as against one, two and four? 
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DR. RINGELHEIM: I don't rate it all. I just say 

that that is a possibility that we would have to take 

a look at in the long run. I don't think we really 

have any firm evidence that three would be better, 

except tha·t mainstreaming is better. That is why I 

said a lot of it is rhetoric rather than research. 

There is a major mainstream project in Texas, Project 

Prime, which I happen to be· an evaluator of for the 

Federal government. And there are a lot of pitfalls 

to the concept of mainstreaming, which most of the people 

who have written on the subject have not fully recognized. 

There are some negatives in mainstreaming. If you put 

a child who is non-competitive in the mainstream - and 

the argument would be, well, the self-image is being 

destroyed if he is in a special class - I think there 

is going to be some counter evidence to the fact that 

self-image may be worse off in a regular class where 

he is becoming less and less competitive, that people 

are viewing him in a worse and worse way, that he does 

not have the capability. 

We have early research. It is interesting we are 

coming full turn. In 1950, the research indicated -

and what was the start of the program of handicapped, 

the early studies by Johnson and Kirk indicated that 

the handicapped child in the regular grades was a 

bully, was rejected, was isolated, was in trouble. 

Therefore, let's take him out of the regular grades and 

provide him with special education. The model then 

was special education away from the mainstream, which 

was to provide him with a separate program. 

SENATOR WILEY: It wasn't necessarily a tributary 

either. It was a side stream that never flowed into 

the mainstream. 

DR. RINGELHEIM: Right. It was actually an isolated 

circumstance. A lot of the critics now indicate, once in, 
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never out. Again that is why I think I like the main

stream concept because it does interject within th~ 

thinking of all of us that there is a constant issue 

that should be before us, that a child in special 

education shall always be considered as capable under 

certain conditions to move up that ladder into main

stream competitiveness. Therefore, you should never 

be happy about a child, say, in an isolation circumstance. 

That is why that upward ladder is also part of mainstream. 

If a child is in an insitution, it is the institution's 

responsibility to get him out and to get him in an 

educational program which is out of the institution, 

per se. Then you can say the next rung of the ladder 

is an isolated classroom. He is still isolated, but 

he is in a normalized environment. 

The next question would be to move him out of an 

isolated special education program to the next rung 

up, which would be to place him in competition, capable 

competition, within the mainstream. 

Then the next rung up is to remove him from the 

special class, put him in a regular program, and provide 

him with ancillary and special programming and keep 

him competitive. Then move up, reduce that time and 

then the answer for the most part is to try to make 

handicapped children non-handicapped within our 

educational framework. I think we lost sight of that 

generalxy in special education thought and I think 

the people who have brought the concepts of normalization, 

who have brought the concepts of mainstreaming, who 

have brought the concept of self-fulfilling prophesy, 

who have brought these concepts to the fore, have sort 

of stimulated a movement which has changed some of 

our general thinking. But I do not like at this point 

in time, especially with the dirth of research, to 

say that these are better. To me, they are alternatives, 
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which are good conceptual frameworks, but I would 

hate to see us move to the point they have in California 

where the Legislature changed the intelligence level, 

and then all of a sudden said that there are certain 

children above this intelligence who have been in 

special classes who no longer should be in special 

classes. To me, this is a travesty and those children 

are reaping the harvest of it because they were returned 

"to the mainstream," just like, yesterday you are retarded 

but today you are not, by sort of general fiat. 

We are running into this also in regard to our 

national organizations. For instance, the American 

Association of Mental Deficiency has also changed its 

definition of mental retardation from one standard 

deviation to two standard deviations, which is a technical 

term, but it has IQ ramifications. I say, all well and 

good, bu~ I would like to see if we change it that the 

children are provided a transition program if we are 

now declaring them out. 

So there are a lot of issues relative to what is in 

the literature today and maybe New Jersey is unfortunate 

that I am a basic conservative in plunging ahead with some 

of these ideas. We are involved in resource room programs 

heavily. We would like to see this. But I am a little 

bit concerned as to the tremendous shift in the use 

of resources as if this now was the answer for those 

children who have already been in Special Ed. under 

other circumstances. 

SENATOR WILEY: New Jersey is very fortunate to have 

your leadership. I disagree with you on that. 

Senator Martindell is with us, despite recent 

hospitalization, despite having been down in the 

Appropriations Committee meeting until 9:30 last night. 

Senator Martindell, do you have any questions? 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: Just one question. I was 
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interested in this parent training pilot program. 

Has that been successful? 

MR. RINGELHEIM: I never like to say 11 Success 11 

until we have the evaluation. My own feeling is it 

is beyond our expectations in terms of success. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: My second question to that 

is: If it was possible to fund such a thing, would 

it not be a good idea to always have parent training 

going with whatever else you have? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I would definitely endorse that. 

The appropriations, the additional appropriation~or the 

continued appropriation of the Legislature in the Early 

Childhood, will go to continue that project. 

We would like to suggest that in 11 thorough and 

efficient 11 such a program be continuously available. 

And we are trying to do that through our own staff, 

for example. We will train our own staff in this 

capability and, if worse comes to worse and a local 

district does not have this capability, we will provide it 

from the State level. We want a complete backup on 

these four options so that every child will have an 

option. 

SENATOR MARTINDELL: Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much, Dr. Ringelheim. 

Paul Muller, the Staff Aide to the Education Committee, 

has a question. 

MR. MULLER: Dr. Ringelheim, when we think of programs 

for school-age children, it is the child running off 

at 8:30 and coming home at about 3:30, running to the 

school bus. Would transportation be a problem? How 

would we go about getting the children to these programs? 

We are talking about three-year-olds now. Could you 

outline for us very briefly what the program would 

consist of? Would it run from 9:00 to 3:00? Would 

there be the yellow school bus.picking the child up and 
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bringing the child back? How WL)Uld this work? 

DR. RINGELHEIM: I would hopo it wmd d be a small 

yellow school bus. No, we arc projcctillq, in rpgard 

to the pre-school program, a half-day program. 

Again the day-training concept has other ramifications 

as to why the child stays in the program. We would 

like to see this primarily an educational program, 

which would be a half-day program because we think 

that is about the length of time the child.could benefit 

from an educational program. 

We foresee the transportation obviously not with 

large yellow buses, but smaller buses, in which there 

would be potentially, depending on its size, an aide 

for these children. 

MR. MULLER: Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much, Dr. Ringelheim. 

We are delighted to have your expert evaluation and 

advice. We appreciate it. 

We said we would break at eleven for ten minutes. 

Let•s do t~at and we will resume at twelve minutes 

after eleven. 

(Short Recess) 

SENATOR WILEY: Can we resume, folks. As a hearing of 

thi2 kind goes alone, you will find because we are all 

talking about the same subject that some areas that you 

might have expected to talk about will already have been 

explored. We have a practice in the Senate of trying 

not to repeat each other in debate, although that is 

hard to do because all Senators like to hear themselves 

speak, but we find that that is helpful to everyone 

there. However, if there are new observations or new 

insights, .we want to be sure we get those. 

With that suggestion as a backdrop, let•s proceed 

with our order of events. The next name on the list 
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that I have 1s Mr. John Donoghue, Monmouth County 

Association for Retarded Children, Red Bank. 

Mr. Donoghue, welcome. You might give your name 

and address. 

J 0 H N D 0 N 0 G H U E: My name is John Donoghue. 

I am the Executive Director of the Monmouth County ARC 

and we are located on Hudson Avenue in Red Bank. 

As Executive Director, I represent an ARC that has 

approximately 600 members, about 170 people in the 

program every day and a full range of programs, running 

literally from birth through 60 years of age. We deal 

primarily with trainable retarded, but we do have mostly 

disturbed and multiple-handicapped in all our programs. 

I would like to clarify that the "from birth" program 

is really with an affiliation. It is an interagency 

program which started about a year ago. I am a trustee 

in that organization, the Early Intervention Program, and 

it consists of cerebral palsey, the March of Dimes, 

ARC and a number of other agencies, including the Develop

mental Disability Services CounciL In that program, we 

take children with undefined handicaps and program them 

from birth to three. The rationale for that is that 

you can 1 t always tell what the handicap is but you do 

know you have a handicapped person and medical science 

has shown us in the last three years - and I am para

phrasing Dr. Richard Nelson, who is a neurologist at 

Jersey City Medical Center - the science of the develop

ment of the neural system has been enlarged more than 

it was in the previous 30 years. So many of the things 

that I was taught when I was trying to become a psycholo

gist are so outdated now that they are almost ludicrous. 

The development of the neural system, according to 

Dr. Nelson, can be improved. There is a physical 

change in it. The change must be done through some 
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form of stimulation. If the stimulation isn't done 

within two-year or three-y0ar iJrackr'ts, it is irrevocable. 

I Lhink that _Ls VC'l'Y, V('L-y pc'J-titH'Ill lu wltdl Wl' arc' 

tryinq to do here. 

With the children in Monmouth and Ocean County who 

are in the EIPprogram, there are approximately 60 children 

in that program now of all handicaps. We are approaching 

it through a multiple discipline program and we are 

getting measurable results. It is very difficult to 

measure results in those children, but I think we have 

the consensus from the medical people, the professional 

teachers, the social workers and the parents, that there 

has been discernible improvement within the eight- or 

nine-month period that that program has been in operation. 

On that basis, I think we have come up to a very 

key point. I would like to point out before I get to 

that key point that the Early Intervention Program is 

not unique to Monmouth and Ocean, but in fact it is 

in about half the counties in the State now. The programs 

are not all of the same nature as ours, but we are 

hoping to de that, and there is a commitment to get 

Early Intervention Programs in every county. That is 

an active program currently being conducted by the Com

mittee. If we get that program and our goals are achieved 

--we are now serving children from birth to three and 

we know that we have measurable results. We are proving 

Dr. Nelson's testimony, without his being here, by 

seeing improvement in these children. Now from ages 

three to five apparently we have nothing. 

We have two problems: first of all, the parent 

who has never heard about an Early Intervention Program 

and has a handicapped child at home and who not having 

any solution to the problem, may ask for institutionalization, 

the most horrible thing that could happen. The other 
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problem is where the parents have availed themselves of 

the services of an Early Intervention Program and 

at age three there is no more program. Theref?re, the 

child will be without any form of stimulation, educational 

or social, unless the parents provide it, for the next 

two years. That is the gap I think we have to address 

ourselves to and decide how we shall fill that need~ 

In a County ARC, such as I work for, we have tried 

to provide these programs. Many of us have nursery 

programs. I think one of the things that we can say 

is that it has been done with a great deal of zeal. 

In some cases it has been done with professional staff. 

In other cases, it has been done with less than a 

professional staff. There has been a great deal of 

inconsistency. The services are not uniform. The 

number of facilities available do not always meet the 

needs and in many cases the transportation problem 

raises its head again. 

With our three nursery programs that we run in Mon

mouth County --and we think that is pretty good - we 

have 30 children in those programs, primarily trainable, 

but there are multiple handicapped in there-- we are 

providing a needed service. We know we are not providing 

all of them because we have statistics as to how many 

children should be in programs. But those programs in 

the County ARC are the largest money drainers that 

we have and in a volunteer organization we can on~y do 

so much. So when we provide a nursery, we don't provide 

some other vital service to some other retarded person. 

The answer seems to be very logical. We have given 

children in this day and age programming from birth 

to three. We have to continue that. How shall we 

continue it and make it of the highest level, make it 

consistent throughout the State and make it available 

on an equitable basis to all persons who deserve it? 
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It could be done through a number of means, I suppose. 

we do have social agencies. We have the Division of 

MR in I ar..d A. And we have our well-known and well

respected Department of Education. The logical thing, 

in my mind, is that we call on the expertise that is 

there to develop a program for the three- to five-year

old. Now they can do it. They are doing it now, 

as you know, through the pilot programs,and there has 

been some reasonable success .. The problem with the 

pilot programs, although where they are in effect 

they have good programs, is that they are not being 

provided to everyone. So that is an inequity. 

You talked earlier, Senator Wiley, about mainstreaming. 

I think one of the things - and it happened to center 

on mental retardation -- one of the main problems in 

mental retardation is the fact that we don't have 

enough time to accomplish all the education that can 

be absorbed by a person who is mentally retarded. The 

brain develops rather rapidly at that early age. And 

if we can't capitalize on those years, we have lost it. 

We have lost the opportunity to get them up to their 

capabilities and we have to utilize that time. We can't 

expect them to catch up later. The scientific evidence 

and my years of having been on the firing line have 

proven that doesn't happen. A retarded person doesn't 

catch up. We must use every day and maximize every 

day to get them to the point where they can reach their 

fullest potential and ultimately be more amenable to 

mainstreaming. I think at the eighth or ninth grade 

level, it is hard to get them into the mainstream. I 

think it would be far better to use those early years 

in reaching their capabilities and then attempt the 

mainstreaming. 

In my brief experience ln this job, I might say I 

don't think the State of New Jersey has utilized all 
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the things that have been available to it, particularly 

Federal money. I would like to point out to the Committee 

that in Washington right now there is a bill - I don•t 

know what its potential for passing is - that has been 

presented by Senator Williams, which would pay up to 

75 percent of the cost of education for the handicapped. 
i ' 

I certainly think it should be mentioned and kept in 

mind that in the cost factor, which is always a problem 

in our State, that should be considered. I think that 

bill is currently in committee and could be a potential 

resource. Since we have been able to use some of the 

title moneys in the State of New Jersey in the last year, 

we have been able to add to the number of programs 

available to the handicapped. That money hasn•t been 

used to its maximum advantage in the past. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: I have wondered with the efforts 

around the State to do something for younger children, 

such as day care, providing for 15 or 20 thousand 

children, largely a custodial type of program in the 

Department of Institutions and Agencies -- I have 

wondered whether that is really in the right department, 

whether we are doing as much as we should. The Federal guide

lines have imposed some educational obligations on us. 

We are beginning to do more than just to provide custodial 

care. When you combine that with the reduction of 

enrollment in the public schools and the fact that we 

have a lot of public school buildings around the 

State and we have a lot of teachers, particularly at 

the elementary level, who can•t get work and yet have 

the capability to help young children, and when you 

hear about the ability to do things for handicapped 

children in the early ages, you wonder if we ought to 

be moving more rapidly toward making the State recognize 

its responsioility for all children at these younger 
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ages. That is really what I have in mind in talking 

a:Oout mainstreaming, whether we ought to make something 

available in a suitable way for three- and four-year-old 

children quite generally if, indeed, this is an age 

when they are particularly susceptible or particularly 

able to benefit from early instruction. I don't pretend 

to know the answer, but those just layman's insights 

make me wonder if it isn't a valid kind o~ a question. 

If that were so, this would fit into it, I presume, 

rather nicely. 

MR. DONOGHUE: Yes. 

SENATOR WILEY: I have no further questions. Thank 

you very much, s~r, for appearing before us. We 

appreciate it. 

MR. DONOGHUE: Thank you for the opportunity. 

SENATOR WILEY: I'm sorry. Mr. Muller has a question. 

MR. MULLER: I would just like to clarify my thinking 

on one point. With regard to the retarded children, you 

had mentioned that there is a time period which is 

critical. What age is that? I missed that. 

MR. DONOGHUE: Dr. Nelson said this occurs in incre

ments. It is a continuing thing. Of course, the growth 

of the neural system is greatest at the earlier stages. 

He said they have physciological proof, through investi

gation of the neural system, that it does physically 

change and it can be changed. He said that it was not 

recoverable after a two- to three-year period. From 

the period, two to five, he thought was the critical 

period. 

MR. MULLER: You would then want to go below age 

three to make sure you cover that period. 

MR. DONOGHUE: Yes, but I don't think an educational 

program is appropriate. 

MR. MULLER: Th.at was my next question. What program 

would be appropria-te and which agency or agencies would 
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provide that program? 

MR. DONOGHUE: W~ll, currently the early intervention 

type program or infant stimulation type program. 

I don't think it fits in any category that I recognize 

in our institutional structure, if I can use that word 

broadly, because you have problems. "Handicapped" has 

not been defined and you have many multiple-handicapped 

children who are being kept alive today through the 

medical profession. I think there are something like 

eighteen different handicaps that are being served in 

Monmouth County alone. There you need more of a 

medical type approach. The approach that we see as 

most important in that area is the trainin·g of the parent 

more than the child, himself. By providing stimulation 

to the parent, we get recognizable results in the child. 

But that is the time that parents tend to fall apart. 

Families break up and children are placed in institutions. 

We find the parents need service. 

MR. MULLER: But I gather that there are at least 

two things that should be done: You have to train 

the parent to help train the child. That is going to 

be a critical factor. Then I gather you are saying also 

that you have to help the parent over this emotional 

trauma. 

MR. DONOGHUE: Right. 

MR. MULLER: Now the question is: How do we provide 

that parent training? You are saying that you don't 

see it in any of the institutions that currently exist 

or that being the primary function of any institution 

that exists, such as the Board of Education 

MR. DONOGHUE: or I and A or Health. 

MR. MULLER: Do you have any idea how that service 

could be provided? 

MR. DONOGHUE: We are hoping through the early inter

vention program to try to work this out. I ·happen to 
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be a pragmatist more than a theoretician. I have a 

retarded child and we are using many of the things ti1at 

the people who have been leaders in our community have 

found ef:Zective. That is person to person. You don't need 

too many Ph.D.'s to talk to a parent. You need a 

parent who can show that they lead a perfectly normal 

life and that the siblings are not affected. And you 

get the fear out of the way. 

MR. MULLER: Do you think it would be appropriate 

or could b9 appropriate for a Board of Education to 

have adult education programs, as many of them do now, 

but in this area? 

MR. DONOGHUE: Yes. The only reason I would hesitate 

to agree too rapidly is the fact that many school 

districts, particularly in Monmouth - we have, I think, 

53 now - are very small. It is unfortunate. I would 

say the volunteer agencies have done a good job in that 

area and I think will continue probably to serve. We 

are not planning on going out of business. That would 

be our prime function, I would think, more than doing 

the programming that we sometimes get too involved with. 

MR. MULLER: Is there a role for public agencies 

or a public agency in this training? 

MR. DONOGHUE: Oh, yes, I think so. The Division 

of Youth and Family Services I think has some facilities. 

They have staff there that can provide that. Most of 

the counties now have done this and the volunteer 

organizations, working together, more and more each 

year are doing this type of thing, I think, very 

effectively. There is nothing better than having a 

parent of a handicapped child go into a house that is 

running very, very well where a child has the same 

handicap that they have found their child has. We 

will have a parent testify in a little while who is in 

our EIP program and I am sure she will indicate to you 
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her personal feelings. I have seen uniformly throughout 

the State once you get the unknown out of the way and 

you know what you are dealing with, most people are pretty 

realistic. 

MR. MULLER: Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Mr. John White, also of the Education 

Committee staff, has a question. 

MR. WHITE: Would it be naive to seek some clarification 

on what you meant by an impJ.ied distinction between your 

program and an educational program? In other words, 

you implied that there is a distinction between your 

program and an educational program that might be work-

ing at cross purposes. What do you mean by •educational 11 

as opposed to what you are referring to:in terms of 

stimulation? 

MR. DONOGHUE: In the infant stimula·tion -- Is 

that the specific one you w~re referring to? When you 

say 11 program, 11 it is sort o:·~ ambiguous to me. The 

ARC Program which I operate is in many areas, from 

sheltered work shops to fam.i.ly counselling. But I 

think the Early Intervention Program•s primary function 

is to serve the child, but .Ln terms of time and com

plexity of services, the se:~vice to the parent and the 

family is far more important. And we try to get that 

part emphasized strongly. 

When a child comes out of an Early Intervention Program 

and comes into an ARC Program, the parents and the 

family have now reached a s·t.able attitude towards what 

their problem is and they don•t need as much counselling 

and as much training in how to work with the child. 

And, of course, we run a wider variety of services 

because we are dealing with a more adult person - recre

ation types and that type o.~ thing. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you, sir. 

Janice Van Deusen. Welcome to the Committee. 
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J A N I C E VAN D E U S E N: Thank you. 

It is a pleasure to be here. 

My name is Janice Van Deu;en. I am speaking as 

a concerned parent, a member of the Parents' Group 

for the Mercer County Schoo.~ of Retarded Children. 

Why did this happen to my child is a question which 

all parents of handicapped •:.:hildren ask themselves 

repeatedly. Unfortunately, there is no answer. A 

better question might be: What can be done to.help 

my child make the most of this situation? This question 

can be answered. 

As the mother of a retard·2d child, my own thinking 

evolved from the first ques·tion to the second after 

I had endured two years of chronic self-pity, deep 

sympathy from friends and bad advice which suggested 

that I reconcile myself to institutionalizing my son. 

Watching my son, who was a delightful and good baby, 

I realized that I had succunbed to my own prejudices 

against retardation. He was alert and curious. He 

could learn. 

Last October, he was enrolled as a student in the 

Mercer County School for R•::tarded Children, which is 

sponsored by the Mercer County Unit for Retarded Citizens. 

At two and one-half, he has made great progress in 

the areas of self-sufficiency and socialization. 

My hopes for what he can ac:::omplish, thougl:. realistic, 

are very high. And you may have noticed that some of 

our children are here today, taking part in these 

proceedings. 

From the time you know yo'~r child is retarded, you 

live with a feeling of inad•:;!quacy. You cannot be sure 

you are giving your child the help that he needs to 

develop to his full potential. Parents may provide 

love and stimulation, but L1ey cannot provide the 

objectivity of the trained special instructor or speech 
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therapist which is required to lnsure progress. 

The sooner our children a::-e exposed to trained 

personnel, the more time is added to their learning span, 

which has been proved shorter than children functioning 

~t a normal level. Therefore, ~t is essential that they 

begin their education by the ag~ of three. 

For this reason, Parents of Retarded Children 

urge you to act favorably on S ,141. Its enactment would 

insure that countless families in our State who have not 

l.ad the educational guidance or the economic ability would 

·cecei ve preschool help for the i.e handicapped youngsters. 

While the State of New Je:::-sey can never answer the 

parents of handicapped children who ask: Why did this 

happen to my child? It can thr·.)Ugh enactment of S 441 

~nelp to answer the question of what can be done to help 

my chlld make the most of this ~3ituation. 

An investment in the educ<ttion of handicapped children 

at three years of age now will 9ay off in an increased 

number of self-sufficient, contcibuting members of society 

Ln the future. Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much. I appreciate 

it. 

Mr. Thomas Brooks. (Not present.) Is there anyone 

·2lse from project Bright Eyes, Cinnaminson Public Schools? 

(No response.) 

John Scagnelli. It is nice to have you with us. 

J 0 H N P. S C A G N E L L I: Thank you, Senator 

Wiley. I am very happy to have the opportunity to 

present our views before the coDmittee. 

My na~e ~f John P. Scagnelli, Executive Director of the New Jersey 
Assoc1at1on ~or.Retarded Chi~dren. On behalf of the 14,000 members 
o~ our Assoc1at1on, I apprec1ate this opportunity to present to you 
d1rect~y, our statewide interest,concern,and support for the 
establ1s~ent of Pre-School Programs for the handicapped within 
our Publ1c Schoolso 
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The New Jersey Association for Retarded Children, Inc. is a 
voluntary, non-profit organization composed of parents, relatives, 
professionals and concerned citizens. Founded twenty-five years 
ago, the Association, through its twenty local units, provides dir
ect and indirect services to the retarded in every county in New 
Jersey. The Aesociation represents the strongest single force in 
the private sector working to improve the lives of the over two 
hundred thousand retarded, both young and old, in our State. The 
intent · of this position statement is to support and urge passage 
of Senate Bill No. 441. 

II. THE PRE-SCHOOL 

During recent years, there has been a remarkable growth of pro
fessional and public interest in young children and in the pre
school education they receive. Our present knowledge of the 
development of learning abilities indicates that the pre-school 
years are the most important years of learning in a child's life. 
A tremendous amount of learning takes place during these years, 
and this learning is the foundation for all further learning. 
Areas of development where significant growth takes place are 
physical, social, intellectual, and emotional. In the area of 
physical development, practically all motor skills are learned and 
reflect the environmental influences on the young child. Socially, 
a child's first encounter with a group setting away from home 
may be a pre-school program. It offers a child opportunities to 
develop relationships outside the family with both adults and peers 
and to gain confidence away from his family. The works of 
distinguished educators and psychologists such as Piaget, Bruner, 
and Montessori have demonstrated the importance of the pre-school 
years in intellectual development. 

Emotionally, it is during the pre-school period that the child 
begins to relate his own identity to others, his peers and a 
variety of adults, who offer different types of role models. The 
child learns to cope with the demands of others and develops 
strategies of handling rejection, acceptance, domination, and 
submission. A child in a pre-school becomes more emotionally and 
functionally independent as his self-confidence .and actual skills 
increase. 

III. PRE-SCHOOL FOR THE HANDICAPPED 

Research has emphasized the crucial importance of the first few 
years of a child's life, the importance of early identification 
and remediation of handicaps cannot be overestimated or over 
e~phasized~ T~e.disabled_child is handic~pped in two ways. 
Flrst,. ·he lS llmlted by hls lack of experlence which has resulted 
from his disability and his being protected from activities that 
normal children ordinarily enjoy. Secondly, he is handicapped 
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by his inability to take advantage of the every-day experiences 
that normal children utilize in their development. Unless special 
programs designed to provide compensatory opport,Jnities for all of 
the disabled are developed, they will be doubly handicapped. 

Pre-school programs for the handicapped in the Public Schools will 
immeasurably contribute t_o diagnosis, development of skills needed 
in school, parent-child relationships, and prevention. Specifically 
the underlying assumptions for pre-school classes can be stated 
as follows: 

(1) Pre-school classes for the handicapped will provide these 
children with stimulation and enrichment otherwise denied 
them in their environments. Such stimulation and enrich
ment will raise intellectual l·evels quantitatively and 
qualitatively so that in-school and out-of-school func
tioning will be enhanced. 

(2) Pre-school classes for the handicapped will make modi
fications possible in the child's developmental schedule 
so that gaps that may hinder learning and adjustment may 
be closed. 

<3) Pre-school classes for the handicapped will benefit the 
child in his inter-family relationships. Parents will 
learn early that they are not alone and that their child 
can learn. 

(4) Pre-school classes for the handicapped will benefit the 
public school system. Many children who have received 
pre-school training may pass directly into the regular 
elementary classes thereby providing a more normalized 
educational experience for the child and reducing the 
expenditures for special class resources. 

(5) Pre-school classes for the handicapped will benefit the 
special education programs within the schools by allow
ing professionals the opportunity to provide a full cont
inuum of educational services to the child. The quality 
of existing will thus benefit. 

IV. THE C01'1MITI'IENT TO PRE-SCHOOL PROGRAMS FOR TRE HANDICAPPED 

Commitment and action on behalf of pre-school programs for the handi
capped have taken place on National, State and Local levels in both 
the private and public sectors of this Country. 

Recognizing the need for this type of programming and realizing 
the benefits,the Federal Government was prompted in 1968 to pass 
the Handicapped Children's Early Education Assistance Act. This 
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program was enacted to act as a cataly.st. It was designed to stim
ulate local and state efforts, first by demonstrating the effective
ness of pre-school and early childhood education, and second, by 
giving visibility to such programming. The Federal Government has 
also moved to stimulate pre-school programming for the handicapped 
under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act - Title VI, and by 
mandating ten per cent of pupils in Head Start Programs must be from 
the handicapped population. Clearly the Federal Government has 
recognized the need and realized the benefits of such programming. 

In New Jersey, the State Department of Education has made .. modest 
steps in the direction of providing pre-school to the handicapped. 
The 1973-74 budget contained $500,000 for the establishment of 
these programs. Approximately fourteen State funded pre-school 
programs are now functioning throughout the State. 

Recognizing the importance of this type of programming, the allo
cation for fiscal '74-'75 has been increased to $1 million. On the 
local level during the '72-'73 school year, more than 230 handi
capped pre-school children received educational services provided 
by a district Board of Education with a 5~~ State reimbursement for 
expenditures. 

Within the private sector, the Council for Exceptional Children, 
in their Policy Statement on Government Affairs, has stated .. that: 

Provision should be made by Government for services which pre
vent and ameliorate conditions negatively affecting the devel
opment and education of children and youth from pre-school 
programs beginning at birth and continuing through adult 
education. 

The National Association for Retarded Citizens, in its 1971 Policy 
Statement on Education, called on the public schools to provide 
services for children according to their educational needs, regard
less of age. In this State, the New Jersey Association for Retarded 
Children has long been an advocate for manditory pre-school for 
the handicapped. Last year, the Association called upon the 
Education Commissioner's Advisory Committee on the Education of 
the Handicapped to press for this programming. Units of N.J.A.R.C. 
have l~ng demonstrated the need for pre-school by providing this 
service - beginning in 1953, when the first pre-school class 
for the retarded was established, and continuing to the present, 
with more than 40 pre-school classes serving over 350 children. 

Experience from these programs demonstrates the need for and effec
tiveness of early education for the handicapped. 

V. NEW JERSEY AND SPECIAL EDUCATION 

New Jersey has long been recognized as a leader in the area of 
Special Education. The "Beadleston Act" has served as a model 
for other states throughout this Country. When New Jersey estab-
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lished pre-school programming for the handicapped as permissive 
option to local school districts, it represented a step forward. 
Today, there are thirty states in this Country with similar pro
visions. These provisions in New Jersey have not proven sufficient. 
Too few districts have exercised the option to provide these pro
grams. Eleven states have now recognized the weakness in an 
optional system and have established some form of mandatory 
programs for the pre-school handicapped. The time has now come 
for New Jersey ~o take the next logical step in providing quality 
programs to our handicapped citizenso 

VI. RECOMMENDATIONS 

The New Jersey Association for Retarded Children endorses and recom
mends the passage of Senate Bill No. 441, sponsored by Senator 
Alfred N. Beadleston. New Jersey has provided funds and programs 
for pre-school handicapped children in what amounts to a selective 
and limited basis. These services should now be provided to all 
handicapped children on a statewide basis dovm to the age of three 
years old. 

Optional services which have been available to the 3 to 5 year old 
handicapped child should now be extended to the child under. 3, years 
of age. (Chapter 28: Sub-chapter 1. Section 6.28-l.lc of the 
Administrative Code.) 

The Association further recommends that the statements in the Admin
istrative Code "gives advance notice of basic body needs" (Chapter 
28: Sub-chapter 2: 6:28-2.1 Mental Retardation Trainable No. 3.) 
and "expresses baoic wants or needs" (Chapter 28: Sub-chapter 2., 
6:28-2.3 (a) ) Le eliminated as criteria for the admission of a 
~hild to special education services. These statements may be 
lnterpreted to relate to toilet training. The elimination of pre
school children from services for this reason would mean the denial 
of these services to the children who are in the greatest need. 

Again, on behalf of the 14,000 members of our Association, 
I wish to express our gratitude for this opportunity to 
a.ppear before you and share our concerns and views. We 
'-.hank you very much for listening to us. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you, Mr. Scagnelli. 
Mr. White or Mr. Muller, J.ny questions? Apparently 

there are no questions. You ha.re answered them all by your 
statement. We do appreciate your appearing. 

Mr. Muller has called my a.ttention to notations on 
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the list of witnesses that there are some people who would 

like to testify this morning. Since those are noted here, 

~e will try to honor them and deviate to that extent. 

I think our of fairness t0 the other people who 

assumed they are immediately in line, we might ask these 

folks to concentrate their comments as much as possible. 

•rhey are Carol Allen, Margaret Bell,Cedric Alley, I believe 

it is,of Berkeley Heights; and a representative of the 

School Boards Association, unnamed here, from rt!orris County. 

Let's then ask Carol Allen of the Central New Jersey 

Chapter, NSAC, to come forward. 

C A R 0 L A L L EN: My remarks will be very brief. 

I represent the Central New Jer.3ey Chapter of the National 

Society for Autistic Children, an organization of parents, 

•2ducators, and researchers concc~rned with children who 

:~1ave communication and behavioral disorders. I am a parent 

of a child who has had such dis·")rders and who qreatly 

)enefited from early nursery sc:1ool and a special public 

school pre-kindergarten program.. All evidence indicates 

that the earlier these children are placedin a structured 

day-school environment, the greater their chances for 

integration into the public schJol systems. 

The primary learning deficit of these children is 

·their inability to internally o":-ganize and structure their 

environment. They do not learn to talk or respond to 

language in early childhood and they are confused, with

drawn, and/or hyperactive. Alt:nough researchers of 

these disabilities cannot yet fully explain the physical 

cause of this dysfunction, educational specialists have 

found ways to improve their learning capacities.by early 

and persistent educational techniques. 

There has been a rule of thumb which says that a 

child who is verbal by age five has a good prognosis for 

the future. Therefore, it is highly desirable and 
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economical for school systems to begin educating children 

with communication disorders at aqe three. Their parents 

learn better methods of dealing with the children's 

problems through contact with educational experts. There

fore, the 1mproved behavior and learning capacity of 

the earlier-educated children lowers the ultimate total 

::::ost of their handicaps to educational systems and society. 

SENATOR WILEY: That was short and to the point. 

Any questions? (No questions.) Thank you very much for 

v·our written statement. This, I might observe, is the 

:)rocess we would like to see mo :_·e of, the Legi~ lature 

Jetting the views of these on t:1e outside who Lave some 

•:expertise or some experience on a particular m<ltter. 

Here we are reacting to a particular bill, but this 

·1.::.ind of thing, I think, is the future of the Legislature, 

Lf it is going to do its job fo: New Jersey, tu acquaint 

itself with the facts and with ~he needs in areas so that 

Lt can take some initiative and do so creative work to 

:1elp solve the problems in time3 to come. The fact that 

we have two people at the table today who are on the 

staff of the committee is symptomatic, I hope, of things 

"co come. There was a time not _i.ong ago when committees 

not only had no staff, but there were no committees 

really. We now have some ability to absorb and to exercise 

some initiative. I hope that is going to grow and be 

atimulated in times to come. 

In the meantime, we will try to do our·job with 

the limitations we face. 

Margaret Bell. 

MARGARET B E L L. I am Margaret Bell, 100 East 

Burlington StreE:t in Bordentown. 

What I am about to read i3 a letter that I sent to 

Senator Wiley about a week ago ·'lnd accompanied it with 

about 100 signatures from residents in and around the 

Greater Bordentown area who are in support of Bill S 441. 
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The letter reads as follows: 

"Dear Senator Wiley: 

"This is the first time I have ever tunH"'d to a 

politician to help me solve a family problem, i1ut 

frustration, disillusionment an<; disappointment would 

.nave it no other way. You see, I am the mother of a three 

and one-half year old handicapped child. My daughter has 

what is termed a 'learning disa1Jili ty' evidenced by 

impaired perception and neuro-muscular weaknesses. 

Specialists in the neurological fields of medicine are 

not clear as to why children are born with, or develop such 

debilities, but it is felt that my daughter's problems 

possibly emanate from a history of convulsions and seizures 

that she has suffered since the age of 10 months. 

"Having taught nursery school at one time, I recognized 

fairly early that Deena needed special help -- help that 

I or a regular nursery school was not adequate to supply. 

I took her to two recognized centers for psychological 

evaluation and learning assessment tests and it was 

diagnosed by both that she was potentially very bright, but 

suffered learning disabilities; that was a year ago. Since 

·then, my husband and I have been turning over every rock 

ln search of finding some facility which would be able 

to satisfy our daughter's needs. Oh, we found some, but 

the tuition fees for such specialized centers are stag

gering, ranging anywhere from $1700 to $3700 per year. Since 

we have other children to support and a modest home to 

::nanage, these prices are far in excess of anything we 

could ever hope to pay. Where then, Mr. Senator, do 

narents of moderate incomes turn to get aid for their 

children? Do we just sit and wait and hope for· the best? 

Should we be forced to waste valuable days, weeks and 

months that could otherwise be spent in giving the child 

the individualized therapy that he needs and deserves? 

Why is it that only the more affluent families benefit 
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fruic1 s1 .. ch services when the rig-:1t to education is owed to 

all children, regardless of their ability to pay? Parents 

shm .. ld not have to run from one agency to another, from 

one school, institution or service organization to another, 

begging for money to help their children. I know the 

anxieties that these mothers and fathers feel. The helpless, 

'1.opeless hours that are spent, \.rery often not being able 

·to understand, reach, comfort or cope with our own 

children's complex problems. We grow tired, Senator Wiley; 

we get depressed and have nowhere else to turn but to our 

government for an answer. 

"Right now there is a bill in the Senate Education 

Committee (S 441) which seems to be a solution to our 

problem. It provides for State financial funding for 

handicapped children beginning at age 3o This is the 

crucial age for the handicapped child to start treatment; 

he should not have to wait until he's 5; he needs a head 

start to learning. Delays in proper training only enhance 

his chances of developing emtoional problems, which further 

complicate the original disability. Our children must begin 

as pre-schoolers for any treatment to achieve an optimum 

of success. They must be given those extra years to 

prepare them to cope with a world which puts ever-increasing 

demands and responsibilities on youth. Our children need 

time, Senator Wiley, and the time to act is now! 

"In closing, Mro Senator, I hope you will view this 

letter as something more than emotional dribble, for certain 

facts should speak for themselveso Our children didn't 

ask to be born different, yet they are, and it is up to 

us - all of us - to lend an active hand in helping them 

become happy, contributing members of our society ... 

At the bottom of this, I said, "Attached are listings 

of names collected in and around the greater Bordentown 

area. I trust their signatures will show that a substantial 

number of people, in just one small New Jersey community 
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alone, are sincerely in favor of this vital piece of 

legislation ... 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much, Mrs. Bell. Be 

assured we regard it as something other than merely 

emotional dribble. 

Mr. Cedric Alley, Berkeley Heights. 

C E D R I C A L L E Y: My name is Cedric Alley. I 

live in Berkeley Heights in Union County. Rather than 

x·epeat some of the testimony thu.t has been given, I thought 

I would let you know I am also a pp.rent of a retarded child, 

who has had benefit of pre-school training from the age 

of 2 l/2. He is now 8 and he is in a public school 

Special Education program. 

In speaking to many teachers in Union County, they 

have told me of the benefits to the child and also to 

them as teachers. These children come better equipped to 

the public school if they have had this pre-school training. 

The other benefit, of course, is to the parents -

to help the parents to accept the child's handicap and be 

able to better cope with it in later life. ·Let me tell you a 

bit about some of the programs that the Union County Assoc

iation for Retarded Children have. We have three programs 

for pre-school. The first one is the pre-school program 

for ages 3 to 5, which my son was in. The second program 

is what we call our mini program. It is for younger 

children from age of birth to 3 years of age •. We have 

found there should be no higher limit, that you should 

take the child into this kind of a program as soon as he 

is identified as handicapped. The third program, which 

has shown marked results is our prep program, our Pre-

School Readiness Enrichment Program, which was devised 

for siblings of retarded children who were, themselves, 

functioning on a retarded level. We started this program 

several years ago. After 18 months in this program, 

9 of the first 12 children went back to regular school 
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classes. It just shows you the benefit. 

SENATOR WILEY: Who started the program? 

MR. ALLEY: This is the· Union County Association for 

RetardE'd Children. It shows you tlla t tlH':3c' programs do 

work and are of benefit to all of us. Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you, sir. 

Mr. Donald Fritz for the New Jersey School Boards 

Association. 

D 0 N A L D F R I T Z: Sena~or Wiley and staff, I want 

to thank you for letting the New Jersey School Boards 

Association come before you and give testimony on this 

Billo S 441. I am here represe~ting all the Boards of 

New Jersey through the New Jersey School Boards Association. 

I have with me here Denise Rath, Legislative Agent, for the 

New Jersey School Boards Association who will be here to 

answer any questions, since she did most of the research. 

SENATOR WILEY: She is very good at answering questions. 

We have had Miss Rath before us before. 

MR. FRITZ: Thank you. I realize you are pressed 

for time, but I would like to read our prepared statement 

so that we get through it in pretty good time. , 
The New Jersey School Boards Association has long 

recognized the need for legislation such as S 441. In 

December, 1968, the Association's Delegate Assembly approved 

a resolution calling for identification and provision of 

programs for handicapped children between the ages of 

three and five. This position was reaffirmed in May, 1973 

by the Delegates when they supported Senate Bill 8. In 

fact, this concept of preschool for the handicapped has 

been a major legislative goal of the NJSBA for the past 

six years and we are heartened that the Senate has seen 

fit to hold hearings on such an important issue. 
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I would like to begin our testimony with a brief overview of what 

currently exists in the area of preschool programs for the handicapped and why 

S-441 is needed to complete the progress already made. 

Since 1968 the Bureau of Education for the Handicapped of the U.S. Office 

of Education, Washington, D.C., has viewed early education of the handicapped as 

an area in need of serious exploration. 

A growing number of findings in books, articles, and studies suggest that 

the preschool years are most critical for a child's future. The early years 

.. seem ·especially appropriate for the identification and relief of a child's mental, 

social, physical, or emotional deficiencies. Hence, if some form of qualitative 

intervention does not occur, it is most likely that irreversible deterioration 

could permanently cripple the child's potential for leading a more normal and 

usefu 1 1 ife. 

By the late 1960's, there was not much recognizable development in the 

area of preschool programs for the handicapped. This lag existed principally 

because of the lack of model or prototypical intervention programs and 

strategies which could provide a basis for local planning and implementation. 

In recognition of this critical need for exemplary projects, Congress in 1968 

enacted the Handicapped Children's Early Education Assistance Act. This Act 

authorized the development and operation of model preschool projects for 

children who suffer from physical, emotional, health impaired, and/or mental 

handicaps. These projects, which are now widely scattered across America, are 

commonly and collectively referred to as the First Chance network. Today there 

are nearly 100 First Chance projects; all are administered by the Bureau of 

Education for the Handicapped of the U.S. Office of Education. The Bureau 

awards grants and contracts to public and private non-profit agencies, either 
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serving rural, urban, suburban, or regional areas. 

As a result of these pilot projects and the overwhelming affirming 

research indicating the need, 31 states have already adopted legislation for 

preschool programs for the handicapped. 

New Jersey, itself, was the recipient of four major federal grants to 

study the efficacy of providing early intervention to handicapped children. 

F;ndings from these projects have indicated: 

(1) Early childhood education programs for the handicapp~d have been of 

value for deaf children, con~unication disordered children and 

identifiable mentally retarded children. 

(2) Specific handicapping conditions have shown that service and/or 
I 

educational intervention would be beneficial to any long-range 

educational outcomes. 

(3) Severely emotionally disturbed children benefit from a therapeutic 

environment, physically handicapped from direct physical therapy, 

and severely multiply handicapped children benefit from any 

formalized approach to aid their development (i.e., deaf-blind). 

(4) Trained parents, as educational agents, are as successful, if not 

more successful, in providing educational intervention than 

formalized programs. 

The Federal Government has also through Public Law 90-538 (The Handicapped 

Children's Early Education Assistance Act) indicated that early educational 

intervention can reduce learning impairments and will result in higher achievement 

during regular school years. "Emphasis on early development and education offers 

the greatest promise of preventing and reducing_ secondary handicaps that lead 

to needless debilitation and dependence in later schooling and in adult life." 
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(Policies and Procedure~, Handicapped Children~s Early Education Assistance Act, 

BEH, United States Office of Education, 1969.) 

New Jersey legislation has provided permissive educational programs for 

preschool age handicapped children since 1966. Some local school districts have 

utilized federal funds, primarily Title VI, Part B, Education of the Handicapped 

Act, to develop demonstration and innovative projects targeting on the educational 

needs of preschool age handicapped children. In addition to these projects, 

educational programs for preschool age handicapped children have, to a great 

extent, been provided and supported through the efforts 1 of parent groups and 
i 
I 

other self-supporting private agencies. I 
I 

The 1974 appropriation bill of the State budget qrovided the Department 

of Education $500,000 for the development of pilot projJcts for preschool education 

of handicapped children. The Branch of Special Education and Pupil Personnel 

Services in the Division of Curriculum and Instruction, 1 State Department of 

Education,was given the responsibility of planning for the utilization of 

these funds. 

Thirty-three (33) applications for projects were received from local 

school districts and other agencies. The total amount of funds requested was 

$1,589,373. Fifteen (15) projects were approved for funding. These projects 

provide for screening, identification, and evaluation of three and four year 

old handicapped children. 

All of the funded projects are utilizing data made available by Project 

Child, which has been carried out in 17 of the 21 counties of the State. 

Project Child was designed to obtain information related to the number of preschool 

age handicapped children residing in local school districts. 

Realizing the need for training parents to develop skills to ameliorate 
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handicapping conditions of preschool age handicapped children, the Branch funded 

a special project to Rutgers University to oversee the development and implementation 

of a statewide parent training program. The award of $60,000 includes provisions 

for staff and materialb. to work with local districts in training Parent Trainers 

and providing the Parent Trainers with necessary materials for use with parents 

of children receiving direct services in funded projects. In addition, the 

parent training project provides centers where parents of preschool age handicapped 

children, whose children are not enrolled in the funded projects, will receive 

assistance and training to aid them in working with their children at home. 

It seems obvious to the Association that the necessary groundwork for the 

establishment of preschool programs has been developed in the following ways: 

(1) A needs assessment program has been undertaken by Project Child 

which has determined a target population of 12,000 preschool 

handicapped children residing in New Jersey; 

(2) Sufficient manpower already exists for implementation of programs required 

in S-441. In addition, over a dozen New Jersey colleges offer 

training in preschool education; 

(3) A Department for Preschool Education for the Handicapped has 

been established in the Branch of Special Education and Pupil 

Personnel Services within the Department of Education; 

(4) Several pilot projects have been developed to assist districts 

implementing successful programs; 

(5) A parent training program has been set up in cooperation with Rutgers 

University to aid parents involved in pilot projects as well as for 

those parents with preschool children not being served by pilot 

projects; 
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(6) Implementation of the programs is not rigidly defined,and local 

districts will have all the flexibility they currently have under 

Title 18A, Chapter 46, to pr9vide the most appropriate preschool 

programs; 

(7) Preschool education for the handicapped has long been a top priority 

of the Branch of Special Education and Pupil Personnel Services 

and has been included in the Department of Education•s proposed 

definition of 11 thorough and efficient ... 

{8) Currently, only 200 of the 12,000 projected target population of the 

preschool handicapped children are being served. 

Consistently, research studies and pilot projects have demonstrated that early 

educational intervention with handicapped children has been highly successful. 

And, not only successful but crucial to the development of handicapped 

chi 1 dren'. 

Children that can be identified at a preschool level to be handicapped 

are generally considered to be educationally 11 high risk .. children. Accompanied 

with the classification of high risk is the high chance of experiencing failure-

with all the developmental problems and loss of self-confidence that accompany 

failure during the formative years. Early intervention as its definition indicates 

greatly reduces the experience of failure by providing positive educational 

experiences from the onset of a child•s formal education. 

It is difficult to imagine and harder to treat a child who has gone through 

several years of schooling unable to participate because his handicap has not 

been identified or treated. 

As studies have shown, although there are necessary start-up costs to 

begin preschool education, the handicapped population--those children unable to 

participate in the regular classroom--is substantially reduced. 
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New Jersey has long been a forerunner 1n the field 

of Special Education. It is essential that the Legislature 

continue New Jersey's prominence by lowering the school 

entry age for handicapped children and providing State 

funding for preschool children ,Jn the same basis as other 

children covered under Title 18A, Chapter 46. The passage 

of S 441, which has existed since 1968, is long overdue 

and greatly needed. 

Gentlemen, I do thank you for allowing the New Jersey 

School Boards Association to come before you and testify. 

If you have any questions, I am sure that either myself 

or Denise, ~ill, as you noted, is well-versed in this, 

will be able to answer. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much, Mr. Fritz. 

I would ask the cost question, just to get the 

reaction of the School Boards. We have an estimate of 

$13 million as the State cost. That implies a local cost 

which would be incurred immediately and, I suppose, because 

of the delay in State aid, it has additional implications 

for local school boards. 

MISS RATH: I would like to comment in two ways 

on that. One of our only objections to the bill - we had 

previously submitted some specific technical difficulties 

that we had with the bill to the Committee -- but we do 

feel that the effective date immediately is slightly 

unrealistic and we would ask that the Committee change 

the effective date to give local boards time to budget and 

provide moneys for the programs to provide their contri

butions. 

SENATOR WILEY: W'nat would you change it to? 

MISS RATH: At least giving us one fiscal year, 

September 1975, in order for school boards to budget. 

Their budgeting procedure is already passed for this 

coming fiscal year and they could not possibly have moneys 

in their budget for the program if it were to go into 

effect immediately. 
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SENATOR WILEY: What would you see as the cost? 

MISS RATH: I can only depend on the Department of 

Education•s figures, not having done any studies ourselves. 

We also are of the impression that there will be a 

number of years required before the whole population, the 

'Nhole 12,000 children, will be served. You will have to have 

the Child Study Teams identifying the children and classifying 

them and providing programs. So we imagine that by the 

time the full population will be going, hopefully, this 

will all come under the definition of 11 thorough and efficient 11 

and will be included in the whole program. 

MR. FRITZ: I might add that I think the figure of 

$13 million is the same figure that we share with you 

as being the figure, which means that 50 per cent or about 

six and one-half million, I believe, would come from the 

State, would it not? 

SENATOR WILEY: Is that the way it breaks down, 

Dr. Ringelheim? Dr. Ringelheim is shaking his head in the 

affirmative. 

Thirteen million is the total cost? 

MISS RATH: Right. 

SENATOR WILEY: On an annual basis the local cost would 

be six and one half, is that correct? (S~nator Wiley confers with 

Dr. Ringelheim.) According to Dr. Ringelheim, State aid 

would be a million and a half under present funding. 

You are saying that the total cost in the first year, 

vou would expect to be about $3 million. State aid would 

be one-half of that and that wouldn•t be due for two years 

off. So the local district would pick up three million 

in terms of cash outlay in the first year. Does that 

alter your view or were you taking that into consideration? 

MISS RATH: When the School Boards supported the 

program, they supported it realizing that it was essential 

for the handicapped children between the ages of 3 to 5. 

But they also believe in the long run it is going to save 
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them money by reducing the handicapped population in the 

schools. Early intervention providing programs for the 

children will enable them to go into the regular classroom 

and then they won't be having to contribute 50 percent 

of the additional cost. 

SENATOR WILEY: If the figure proves out to be 

three million total, with one and a half being required 

of local districts as a permanent outlay, and one and a 

half which would subsequently be reimbursed, would your 

feeling be the same, that it ought to be put off a year 

until September 1975? 

MISS RATH: For the same reason, that the local 

school boards haven't had the opportunity to budget the 

money,so their budgets don't contain programs for pre

school1 i t would be very difficult to come up with the 

money in a very fixed and rigid budget. And they haven't 

gone to the public for support of that either. 

SENATOR WILEY: And the dimensions are such that 

you feel they would have to -- they would have to have a 

year to anticipate it. 

MISS RATH: I think so, yes. 

MR. FRITZ: Senator, I may add too that this request 

is not just because of this one bill. Of course, there 

have been several times in the past where bills have been 

passed and have caused undue pressure on local boards to 

pay out of surplus funds or wherever they can get it, 

in order to implement a program that has been mandated 

by the State. Instead of getting the cart before the horse, 

we would request that this bill give local boards an 

opportunity t~ raise funds to do this. 

SENATOR WILEY: The "thorough and efficient" question 

is pending before us, of course, but it doesn't, strictly 

speaking, reach this age level. The Constitution says 

"T and E" applies from 5 to 18. So this might or might not 
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be reached as a part of that undertaking. 

We thank you very much, Miss Rath d.nd Mr. Fritz. 

Very nice t9 have you with us and not _ju::;t lwc<lUSC' you 

are from Morris County either. 

Mr. Holmes has given me a note asking whether we 

might be able to include him in the morning session. 

Suppose we try that, Mr. Holmes. 

D A V I D L A R S 0 N H 0 L M E S: I am David Larson 

Holmes and I am Director of the Princeton Child Develop

ment Institute. 

At the Princeton Child Development Institute, we 

deal primarily with the autistic-like child. Therefore, 

our concern for preschool education is quite high. With 

the autistic child, although I am representing the autistic 

child, I believe that I can speak for the handicapped child 

across the board. 

Most professionals in the field of exceptionality 

imply that early intervention is necessary for reducing 

the degree of exceptionality at the time the child becomes 

of school age. Just t.:::> drop a few names - Luria, 

Vygotsky, Sarason, and Fernald and others have spoken 

of this definite need for early intervention and early 

stimulation. 

There has been mention made of the different states 

who have legislation now for three-year-olds and above 

for preschool education. I have broken this down so that 

we can see some of the specific statistics here. Twelve 

states offer education from birth up to the age of 18 or 20. 

Two states offer from two years of age. Twelve states 

offer from three years of age. Four states from four 

years of age. And there are two states whose legislation 

is pending for education of three-year-olds. As New 

Jersey is a leader in the field of Special Education - I 

think I am being redundant by saying that, but I think it 
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has to be mentioned again and aqain because New cTcrsey is 

thought of in Washington artd acn):3s till' nation as vc1.:y 

liberal as well as having a great degree of foresight when 

it comes to Special Education. The need for preschool education 

is necessary, especially for the children who display 

definite overt handicaps, whether physical, emotional 

or intellectual. 

The implication, as I take it from you, Senator Wiley, 

for global education of three-year-olds to five-year-olds, 

I tend to disagree with and on a questionable basis. Much 

of the research that has come out of the Head Start Projects 

and what have you has shown -- again I am not going to 

make any generalities, but it is questionable as to the 

effectiveness of preschool education in a global sense 

as a compulsory situation, meaning that some of the research 

has shown that those children placed in Head Start programs, 

by the time they are in third grade and fourth grade, the 

other children who started at age five have caught up. 

Therefore, I am leaving that open to question. 

The need for handicapped preschoolers on a compulsory 

basis is questionable again, but I would like to clarify 

that. I believe that some of us have spoken about the 

need for a mandate for the school districts to offer pre

school education, and I think that is what it should be, 

a mandate for the school districts but not for the parent 

to have to agree with this placement. I think you are 

going to find - it hasn•t been mentioned that if a 

child study team iE aware of a preschooler having a handi

capping condition, the chances are it is the parents who 

have approached the child study team. Therefore, as has 

been mentioned before, although you are not mandating that 

the parent accept the decision of the child study team, 

chances are across-the-board that parents will accept it 

because that is what they are looking for. But at the 
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same time, I don't believe the parents should be placed 

in the position where they have to accept. I think you 

'can get the implication from that that the parents will 

accept. However, we shouldn't place the parents in that 

without an option. 

The need for parent education, which has been talked 

about a little bit here, is most important. You are going 

to find, as the research implies, that parents are with 

the child more often than educators, that parents educated 

in the treatment and in the education of their child and 

in the control and coping,and what have you, with their 

handicapped child have a greater influence than any program, 

that any educator, that any psychologist or whoever is 

dealing with the child can devise. 

At the Princeton Child Development Institute we offer 

an intensive parent training program or parent educating 

program. In that case, we have the children from five 

to seven hours a day. The parent, of course, has the child 

from nineteen to seventeen hours a day. If the parent 

is unable to handle that child, to cope with that child, 

to work with that child, to help the child move ahead, 

then we are not doing our job. 

Therefore, the idea of parent education is a most 

important aspect. 

The idea of a 12-month school year, I know has been 

deletedframthe bill and that is a very difficult decision 

to come by in terms of the fiscal aspects. We do offer 

a 12-month program. We see the effects of a 12-month 

program or actually the lack of regression after the 

summer on the part of the handicapped children. Therefore, 

we are in favor of that. However, I do agree that it 

should be deleted from the bill,as it has been, because 

I think that would be another stumbling block. 

Just in closing, I would like to suggest that we 

do support Bill S 441 and thank you for allowing us to 
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voice our opinion on this matter. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you, Mr. Holmes. We appreciate 

it very much. 

Helen Verstrate has a baby-sitter problem. We said 

we would break for lunch at 12:30. I don't want to dis

appoint people's expectations. How long would your testimony 

be? 

MRS. VERSTRATE: I will be very brief, I hope. 

SENATOR WILEY: All right. Welcome to the Committee. 

H E L E N V E R S T R A T E: My name is Helen Verstrate. 

I am a parent of a two-year-old with handicaps. She is 

a participant in the Early Intervention Program that is 

being held ln Long Branch, of which Mr. Donoghue is a 

trustee. 

I would like to tell you my experiences wi t:h the pre

school program. She has been in there since the end of 

October of last year and the change in her-- it's like 

she is two different children since she has been in this 

program. 

I have always been interested in early childhood 

education. I have a son who is six years old and,when 

he was born, I bought a book and it is called, "How to 

Raise a Brighter Child," by Joan Beck. And this became 

my bible. I can see the difference it has made in his 

education, starting in with early training with him. 

If I may, I would like to read you a few quotes, 

which may help you in your endeavors here today. She is 

quoting from a Dr. Benjamin Bloom, who wrote a volume 

called, "Stability and Change in Human Characteristics." 

He is a Professor of Education at the University of 

Chicago. He points out that "future learning inevitably 

rests on the basis of past learning. And what a child 

learns in early life has a powerful, persistent quality 

that makes unlearning difficult. Early learning differs 
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from later learning in its effectiveness. This is another 

reason why parents urgently need more information and 

help in guiding their children through these vital years. 11 

During the years of rapid learningr an environment 

extremely lacking or abundant in intellectual stimuli 

can change a child's IQ as much as 20 points, Dr. Bloom 

estimates. This could mean the difference between a life 

in an institution for the feeble-minded or a productive 

life in society. Dr. Bloom too holds out the hope that 

through a better understanding of early learning processes 

and by changes in child care practices, we can drastically 

reduce the incidence of low levels of intelligence and 

increase the proportion of individuals reaching high 

levels of measured intelligence. 

Dr. Bloom also states that a child has already 

developed half of his total adult intellectual capacity 

by the time he is four years old and 80 per cent by age 

eight. By eight, regardless of what type of schooling 

and environment the child has, his mental abilities can 

only be altered by 20 per cent. 

Sensitive periods exist in the life of every child 

for specific types of learning. These sensitive periods are 

stages in development when the physiological state of the 

growing brain makes certain kinds of learning most easy 

to acquire. After these sensi·tive periods, it is difficult 

or sometimes impossible to acquire these kinds of learning. 

It is obvious that these children must be helped 

early. However, at this stage many children have unclass

ified disabilities. We have seen it with the children that 

are in the early intervention program. My child is 

one of those who now under the present system would be 

classified as neurologically impaired, for which there 

is no program in the three-to-five-year-old category 

that would be specifically designed for many of these 

children, because they are not really retarded, they are 
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not really autistic. There is no classification, except 

probably neurologically impaired. 

SENATOR WILEY: If I understand the reference, you 

said that early childhood education could make a difference 

of 20 points on an IQ scale, but by eighth grade or eight 

years of age, whichever it was 

MRS. VERSTRATE: -- they can only increase it by 

20 per cent. 

SENATOR WILEY: (Continuing) they can only change 

it 20 per cent. That is less than 20 points. Is that the 

idea? 

MRS. VERSTRATE: I think the IQ scale runs up to 

160. 

SENATOR WILEY: So they are saying for a child with 

a 120 IQ, it could be changed 24 points by education at age 

eight? 

MRS. VERSTRATE: 

SENATOR WILEY: 

it later on. 

There you have me. I am not too sure. 

At any rate, less ability to change 

MRS. VERSTRATE: Yes. Certainly they are much more 

able to change it earlier than after age eight. 

I feel that the present system is discriminatory 

against the unsophisticated who happen to live in poor 

school districts who cannot afford or will not set the 

precedent to finance children in these programs. Many 

of them are in areas far from the person 1 s home. The 

transportation is a very big problem. Currently I live 

in Madison Township. I transport my child to Long Branch, 

which is a distance of 21 1/2 miles. That is one way. 

I do this twice a week, mainly because I feel she is 

benefitting from it. How much longer I am able to function 

this way, I don 1 t know~ as long as the price of gas remains 

under a dollar, I guess. 

I hope that you will report S 441 out favorably. 

Mankind 1 s vast total body of knowledge is growing at such 
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a fantastic rate, that it has probably doubled since 1940. 

And today's child will need every bit of intelligence and 

learning ability that we can give hirn to live happily 

and productively in tomorrow's world. This especially 

holds true for the handicapped. 

Please report out S 441 favorable. Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you, Mrs. Verstrate. We 

appreciate your coming before us. 

We will break for lunch and reconvene at two 

o'clock. 

(Recess for Lunch) 
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(Afternoon Session) 

SENATOH WILEY: We'll rcsumo ouc hcJtillg if we 

can have your attention. I'm sorry, I had hoped to start 

right at two, and it is my fault. 

We have some new people in the room. For your 

information, this is a Public Hearing on Senate Bill #441 

which provides that the schools of our State should be 

open for handicapped children, ages 3 and 4. That is a 

piece of legislation which is now before the Senate 

Education Committee. That Committee is considering 

whether it should act on the bill and if so, how. It 

is considering what it means to children and how much 

it would cost. The purpose of this hearing is to permit 

people who are interested in the bill to come in and 

tell the Senate Education Committee about it so that we'll 

have the benefit of that information in making up our 

minds. 

I am Stephen Wiley, Chairman of the Senate Education 

Committee. Just prior to the break, I had a request from 

Liane Gilbert and Carol Manning. A school bus is going to 

drop their children off, and if they're not back there to

Mrs. Manning - receive the children, they may be in trouble 

and I don't want that to happen. Elaine Stemmle - if I 

pronounced it correctly - has also requested consideration 

along that line. So, we'll ask first for Liane Gilbert, 

then Carol .i1anning, and then Elaine Stemmle. 

Nice to have you with us. 

L I A N E G I L B E R T: My name is Liane 

Gilbert, and I represent the Search Day Program in West 

Allenhurst, New Jersey. 

SENATOR WILEY: Can you folks hear 1n the balcony? 

You can? Okay. 

MRS. GILBERT: The Search School is a--

SENA'l10R WILEY: The lady who is testifying is right 

here. They're trying to figure who it is that is speaking. 
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MRS. GILBERT: Oh, I'm here. 

The Search Day Program is a school for exceptional 

children. The Director of the Program, Mrs. Maybank, 

is on the Monmouth County Advisory Council for Preschool 

Children. We have a preschool unit in our school. It 

has five children in it. We have noticed considerable 

progress in the children, and I also have documentations 

from Doctors that are associated with the children,giving 

reference to their progress. 

I'd like to give a little information about the 

program first. We have a parent group - ~t doesn't just 

involve the children directly - that the psychiatric 

social worker meets with once a week for an introduction 

to the program. They have had an informal presentation 

of behavior modification in order to work with their 

children at home. They will have formal procedures under 

the direction of the behavioral psychologist who is 

connected with our school. Our speech correctionist has 

met with the parent to discuss individual programs to, 

also, implement these things at home. 

The individual children have made a considerable 

amount of progress. We had one boy thatwas referred to us. 

It was stated that he had extreme behavioral difficulties, 

that he had a very minimal attention span. He was diagnosed 

as, possibly, autistic. This child was untestable when he 

entered the program, and now his IQ has been tested to be 

121. This is after six months in the program. He will 

probably go into a normal nursery school next year. So 

he has been -- he will be in the program for about a year 

and then he will go back to a normal nursery school. 

Another child -- it has been reported by her parents 

that she is much more verbal at home. She follows directions, 

which she didn't do when she first entered the program. 

She initiates speech, which is something very new to her. 

She wasn't interested with speech and now she is initiating it. 
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She also delays gratification for a much longer period of 

time. She is much more manageable at home, and this also 

alleviates a lot of problems in the home for the parents. 

Anot"i1er girl also, who was very withdrawn - which is 

a symptom of autisim - is now beginning to relate and is 

much more aware of her surroundings. She was under the age 

of 5 when she was in the preschool. She is now just 5. 

It was felt that it was possible that if she didn't have 

this program at the age she began, that it would have taken 

a much longer time to bring her out of her withdrawn symptoms. 

Gettihg the autistic child or any child with handi

cap into a program at a very early age is extremely important. 

All literature that I have been exposed to in regdrds to this 

indicates that the earlier the child is in a program, the 

more successful their work is and it is easier for them to 

cope with their difficulties. 

SENATOR WILEY: What ages did these children start 

their program? 

MRS. GILBERT: Excuse me? 

SENATOR WILEY: What ages were these children when 

they started their program? 

MRS. GILBERT: The children were between the ages of 

3 and 4~ when they started. 

SENATOR WILEY: And how long were they in it if you 

can generalize? 

MRS. GILBERT: It was started ln September. 

filtered in since September. 

SENATOR WILEY: September of 73? 

MRS. GILBERT: 1973, yes. 

So they 

Now, we have another letter here from a 3~ year old 

boy's parents, "Compliments to you all 11 - from Dr. Graziani, 

a neurologist -"on the marvelous work you are doing." He 

was very pleased with the boy's progress. 

SENATOR vHLEY: What is the level of training of the 

teachers who are responsible for this? 
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MRS. GILBERT: They are certified teachers. It's 

a Bachelor's Degree, and on~ person w o r king 

particularly with these children is in a graduate program 

in Special Education at the present time. Also, the 

children are exposed to the psychologist; the psychiatric 

social worker. We have a consulting psychiatrist and 

also a team that comes in from the polyclinic which is 

comprised of psychologists, psychiatrists, and also two 

more psychiatric social workers. Also, research that is done 

with these children - at the earliest age possible - is 

very beneficial. We participated in a urine specimen test 

from Texas. TWo of our children came up positive. Being 

identified at an early age is more beneficial because, 

unfortunately, they don't have a cure for this particular 

thing right now. But the fact that they are identified 

as having different problems and having something chemical 

that can be determined, the earlier it can be determined 

the better it is because the more research we have in this 

area, the sooner we'll have an answer to the problem. So, 

it is not only in the area of parental training and guidance 

for the children, but it's also research that will be 

greatly helped by this bill going through. 

SENATOR WILEY: How would research capacity be 

provided? What requirements would that impose on the local 

school board in your town? 

MRS. GILBERT: Well, it's a private school- it's a 

private non-profit school - the Search Day Program 

SENATOR WILEY: No, but I mean if this bill were 

passed and your public school were to provide this kind 

of a program, what kind of research capacity would they 

have to have or what kind of medical capacity in order to 

assist in this research effort? 

MRS. GILBERT: Well, the research is not done at the 

school. It is done through communication throughout the 

nation. 
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SENATOR WILEY: I understand, but you have to have 

some input if you have chemical testing or whatever i~ T.ay be -

it sounds like it has medical requirements. Are 

schools staffed to provide that kind of thing now? 

MRS. GILBERT: Yes. The staff collected the samples 

and they were mailed to the institute where they were e

valuated. So, it wouldn't require anything special in the 

school itself. The point I'm making is that through research 

and having the children available for these tests, the re

search can be done. In other words, we have a connection. 

We can having a group of children assembled, you can 

send this research on to different places. 

I think that's about it. We would like to say that 

we are in full favor, and we endorse the bill and are looking 

forward to its passage. 

SENATOR WILEY: All right. Thank you very much. 

We appreciate your appearance. 

Carol Manning, from Englishtown. 

C A R 0 L M A N N I N G: Yes, Englishtown. 

SENATOR WILEY: How long does it take you to get 

back to Englishtown to get that bus? 

MRS. MANNING: Close to an hour. We'll make it. 

Thank you for hearing us early, Senator. I am 

Carol Manning. I am Chairman of the Board of the PASS 

Organization of the Manalapan-Englishtown School District. 

PASS stands for Persons Associated with Special Services. 

We work for the children in special education and with their 

parents and their teachers. 

I'd like to back the statement mad1? by Mrs. Gilbert 

and add an endorsement of our own for the swift passage of 

S-441. We must alwdys bear in mind, the importance of proper 

education for all the children at their proper level but most 

of all, the child with severe problems. They must be reached 

as soon as possible. If a retarded child can be educated at 

age 3 or young(~r, think of the future potential of this child. 
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Shall we permit Johnny to be a welfare case at age 21, or a 

productive human being? Please, on behalf of all the special 

children, move on this bill and help the kids receive the 

help they so need. May we see this enacted as soon as possible. 

This is from the parents of Manalapan-Englishtown School Dis

trict. 

SENATOR WILEY: Would you know how your local Bpard 

of Education feels about it? The Association of School Boards 

feels that passing this bill in its present form - so as 

to go in effect in September - would be too much of a burden, 

financially, for school boards. 

MRS. ~~ING: Well, our board, as all boards, has just 

had their budget defeated -- not that all boards have had theirs 

defeated, but it, you know, is on the books. The money is tight, 

but I personally feel that, possibly, they might be able to 

go out in the referendum once they get their budget passed. 

We, personally, would like to see us pushing the board to get 

it as soon as possible. 

SENATOR WILEY: Do you happen to know if they 

have a point of view in your own case? 

MRS. MANNING: No, I couldn't comment on our 

board's view on that. I really don't know. We just 

try to -get them to spend the money they tell us they 

don't have. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much. 

MRS. MANNING: Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Elaine Stemmle. May we have 

your name and address, please. 

E L A I N E F. S T E M M E L: Elaine 

Stemmle, 345 Chambers Bridge Road, Brick Town, New Jersey 

which is my business address. I am Executive Director 

of the Ocean County Unit for Retarded Children. 

First of all, we have had preschool classes for 

retarded children for 14 years at the unit, and I can 

say, honestly, that the local school districts through-
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out Ocean County - twenty-two in a number - are in favor 

of preschool education, if our unit is any indication 

of this. By this I mean very simply that they have 

made referrals to our unit to provide preschool edu

cation for children within their specific districts. 

I know from speaking with the child study personnel 

that they are highly in favor of the program that 

has been operating at the unit for the 14 years. We 

have seen a tremendous growth within that period of 

time, the need, the demand, on the part of the parents 

to have their children receive this service. They 

are, actually, thrilled with the aspect that they can 

bring their children out of the closets and introduce 

them to the world at a very early age and receive ser

vices for them. Along this aspect, I can say that 

when I became Executive Director of the unit 2~ years 

ago, we did not have any referrals for preschool 

education in our file at that time. We had some news

paper publicity, and we did start the program that 

September with four youngsters and increased it to SlX 

throughout that year. Now, that was a short two and 

one-half years ago. We are presently serving thirty 

youngsters in preschool classes for the handicapped 

at our unit for retarded children. 

SENATOR WILEY: How old? 

.MS. STEMMEL: From 3 to 7 years of age. Now, 

the reason I'm saying 7 years of age, basically, 

most of them are 3 to 5, but in certain school dis

tricts, they did not have what they thought were 

appropriate programs for some of their youngsters. 

Because of this, they are sending their youngsters -

between 5 and 7 years of age, in specific instances -

to our preschool class. Basically, the reason for 

this is that these youngsters have not, previously, 

had any preschool training. So that when they became 
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5 years of age and they were registered in the public 

schools they found that they could not provide an ade

quate program for them. The children just weren't 

ready. Our youngsters who have been through the pre

school program at age 5, every one has been accepted 

into a public school program. We are at the point now 

where some of our youngsters are being accepted in the 

normal kindergarten programs, and I think that's great 

progress, not that they're going to stay within the 

mainstream of education 1n the very narrow context. 

We don't expect that in all instances. But the fact 

that they can be placed in the average kindergarten 

classroom, I think, is a step up. I, also, would 

like to, really, commend the State Department of Education 

for allowing us, this year, to be part of the pilot 

project study. You were given a copy of the brochure 

before - the information on the pilot project, and 

ours is called Project POPE which is sponsored by the 

Lakewood Board of Education. We are - because of that 

project - able to service another twenty. In other 

words, we had our unit operated preschool class for 

ten retarded youngsters, and we are able to service 

another twenty youngsters because of the funds that 

were given to the Lakewood Board of Education by the 

State Department of Education. Part of that project -

and, I think, it is very important, at least I am 

highly in favor of the teaching -- the parent teaching 

aspect of it - incorporates a testing procedure --

there is a battery of about five different tests that 

are given. One is called the Marshal Town Project. 

Now, this is not only a testing procedure. Normally, 

when a child is tested for placement within a public 

school system, the child is given a normal battery 

of tests including the WISC, the Vineland, Social 

Maturity, things of this sort. These tests were drawn 
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up and geared directly to use for the handicapped 

youngsters. I say that because an important part 

of it is that these tests are then used as teaching 

instruments for the parents for use -- the parents 

can use them at home with their children. Now, 

that to me is a quite an important aspect of the 

entire procedure because you have,very simply, a 

parent of a 3 to 5 year old handicapped child who 

would like to do something to work with their children. 

We're giving them something to do with their children. 

They are enhancing their children's education by 

using the exact same materials in the home that we 

are using in the classroom and the exact same proce-

dure. I think we are going to see a great deal of 

progress from that type of an incorporation into the 

program. We're not just testing them, diagnosing, 

classifying and then saying, okay, now you parents who have 

them the majority portion of the time have nothing to 

do with their education. They are integrally involved 

with the education of the children with doing the 

testing and the training at home also. So, I think, 

that that is a tremendously important outgrowth of 

the funds that were given this year by the State 

Department of Education. It is my understanding that 

these projec~s will be reinforced and supported again 

next year, and the only handicap that I see, as far as 

we're concerned at the unit, is where are we going 

to put all the kids because from the point of not 

having any children who were on a waiting list, or 

even in attendance,two and one-half years ago, to 

presently having thirty receiving preschool education. 

The next step beyond that is we do have a pro

gram called Early Intervention and this is a program 

for infants that Mr. Donoghue spoke about previously. 

I am a trustee of that organization also, the Committee 
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for Early Intervention,which means that we are pro

viding services for youngsters from zero to three 

years of age, from birth to three years of age. 

Now, I am concerned. as Mr. Donoghue said prev.iously1 

about the fact that if we do not have mandatory pre

school education for the 3 to 5 year age level and if 

we, as a local unit for retarded children, cannot, 

financially - being a nonprofit organlzation - support 

additional preschool programs, it is quite likely that 

we would have those thirty children who are presently 

involved in early intervention have a cutoff at age 

3 and have no place else for them to go. I think 

this would be disasterous to· our entire c:::mcept of 

working with the handicapped children. 

SENATOR WILEY: How wide -- far-reaching is 

the Early Intervention Program? 

MS. STEMMEL: It, at present, is a bi-county, 

Monmouth-Ocean County Program. We have thirty children 

in each county involved directly in the program at this 

point. We hope next year to expand that to include at 

least one other county. 

SENATOR WILEY: Do you have 60 for the two 

counties? 

MS. STEMMEL: Right. 

SENATOR WILEY: Does that compare to the 30 that 

you have in the preschool program' 

MS. STEMMEL: I don't know how many Monmouth 

County has in their preschool program, but I do know 

in Ocean County we have the same number in our pre

school programs as we have in our Ocean County Early 

Intervention Program. 

SENATOR WILEY: It isn't clear to me what -- in 

the absence of this bill, you're concerned that the 

children who are receiving the attention of early inter

vention are going to be brought along and then not have 
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any place to go. 

MS. STEMMEL: This could quite likely be, yes. 

SENATOR. WILEY: That implies that around the 

state, the Early Intervention Program reaches more 

children than the existing preschool programs that 

are run under private auspices. Is that --

MS. STEMMEL: No, I don•t know. I cannot 

speak about around the state,truthfully, but I 1 m 

saying that in Ocean County, we are servicing as 

many children in the zero to three grouping as we 

are in the three to five age grouping. 

SENATOR WILEY: Right. You would hope that 

the program would reduce - by 50% - the need to 

place handicapped children in special classes. 

MS. STEMMEL: This is one of our objectives 

as far as the Lakewood Board of Education is con

cerned. 

SENATOR WILEY: You haven•t had enough experience 

under this pilot project to know --

MS. STEMMEL: No. We only started our pilot 

project, actually, in February so that.we, as I said, 

have been operating the preschool programs through . 

the Ocean County Unit for Retarded Children for 14 

years. But this specific funding and financing 

through the State Department of Education has only 

been available this year and, unfortunately we were 

turned down at first and then it was approved. So, 

now we are operating it and it is working very well. 

The parents are quite involved. I only had a meeting 

last night with the parents about this testing 

parent training portion of it and they are quite ex

cited about it. I know that there is a great need 

for it. If I just look . at my own experience and 

look - at the need that has been germinated by these 

other programs and by the State Department of Education, 
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assisting, as far as the financial end of it, I 

think that it will be a real boom to our parents 

of the handicapped children. 

Now, one of the questions that you've asked 

some of the speakers was related to funding by the 

local boards of education. Now, I do not have any 

knowledge of how each of the local boards of education 

feel; however, my personal feeling is that this type 

of program has been in the area of permissive legisla

tion since 1971. It has been a very unfortunate 

situation that local school boards havenot taken that as 

any type of a moral mandate to gear up to this 

possibility or have looked upon it favorably so that 

they are doing something about it. I know within 

Ocean County, although they are all in favor of our 

preschool program, they're referring parents to it 

but they're not footing the bill only for the youngsters 

who are over 5 years of age. So, you know, lip ser

vice is great, but we have to go out and raise the 

money in order to operate these programs and we've 

been very fortunate that we are able to do so. But, 

at the same time, I think we need something that has 

a little bit more in the way teeth and I think that 

S-441 would give us what we need. It would give the 

boards of education a mandate -- all right, you're 

pledged to thlli, you support it, you give lip service 

to it, well, now get on the ball and do something 

about it. I think the real beneficiaries are going 

to be the parents and the kids, the kids who are 

handicapped, and this is where my concern is as a 

local executive director. 

SENATOR WILEY: Very fine. Thank you very much. 

We appreciate your being here. 

MS. STEMMEL: Thank you. 
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SENATOR WILEY: Irma Leeds of the Paramus 

Board of Education seems to be next on the list. 

You've waited while we've had a few other people 

j~p in ahead. I hope you indulge us a little bit. 

I R M A L E E D S: That's all right. 

don't have young children so there is no urgency 

in my getting home. 

Senator Wiley, I am very glad to be here 

today on behalf of not only the Paramus Board of 

Education, but I am also representing the Boards 

I 

of Education of Bergen County. As Legislative 

Chairman, I have polled the individual representa

tives of many of the boards - I can't say all of 

the boards - in Bergen County, but as many as I 

could possibly reach by phone and I have only heard 

affirmative responses to this bill. Now, I'm sure 

that you are aware that most of - us - the board 

members, when we see a bill say, how much is it 

going to cost us? From both an economic and moral 

point of view, we have only gotten the affirmative 

responses from the board members. They realize that 

the cost is great, but they also realize that their 

responsibilities to the taxpayers to provide education 

for all the children are greater than what the cost 

would be for this particular group of children. 

Now, I've sat through this morning and I don't 

want to -- I'm not an expert, you've heard the ex

perts, you've heard the parents that are involved,and 

I think tha~ they all have been more eloquent than I 

could be in saying that early detection will help pre

vent the reinforcement of their children's individual 

handicaps. I would like to say - from our poi~t of 

view - that it is important for boards of education to 

identify all of the handicapped children in the district, 

regardless of age. Page 1, Lines 8 through 13, makes 
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it mandatory to seek out children, at least down to 

the age of three and, with approvdl, provide them 

with a program. This helps the Board because even if 

the program is not provided, local Boards will be aware 

of the children with handicaps and be able to initiate 

long term plans. I think this is where the boards of 

education would like to have our figures, and I 1 m sure 

the State Department, too, would like to know, because in 

our planning and budgeting, if we can possible get 

an idea of what we need, it would help us greatly. I 

think that this bill would provide that. 

Now, I have two suggestions - and I haven•t 

heard anyone else mention them - that might help to 

facilitate the implementation of this program. On 

Page 2, Line 19, you•re talking about 11 instructional 

program to privately operated non-profit day classes 11 • 

I ask you - in considering the final wording of the 

bill - would it not be preferable to eliminate the 

non-profit aspect and allow local districts to send 

such students to schools profitably or non-profitably 

operated, as long as they were approved for the pro

gram and as long as they are willing to accept tuition 

not to exceed the maximums set by the State Department 

of Education? 

My other suggestion - which, again, I 1 ll put 

in the form of a question 

SENATOR WILEY: As I look at the committee 

substitute - just to interrupt you a second --

MS. LEEDS: Was there a substitute to that bill? 

SENATOR WILEY: In the committee substitute, 

that word non-profit has been stricken. 

MS. LEEDS: Oh, it has. 

SENATOR WILEY: Is that the official form? 

we•ve just been given a typewritten copy of this 

proposed committee substitute by Senator Beadleston. 
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That word has been stricken in his version. 

MS. LEEDS: Oh, good. I'm glad I'm on the 

same wave length as the Senator. 

Now, maybe this has been taken care of too. 

On Page 2, Lines 27 through 30, I wondered if you 

could not include some other appropriate facility? Some

times it is advisable to have individual instruction 

for a child in a Public Library with approval of 

that Library or in a study room of a museum with the 

approval of the museum or any other feasible place be

cause there must be districts where the individual 

classrooms are all filled and where space would be at 

a premium. I would hate to see a program eliminated 

for lack of a small room. 

I hope that these suggestions will be considered 

in the final wording of this bill - since one was al

ready. I only have the one - but please understand 

that I support this bill and- as I said, I'm representing 

the Bergen County Boards - its objectives to further 

help the children of New Jersey. I thank you for listening. 

SENATOR WILEY: Yes, indeed. It was nice of 

you to appear and we appreciate it. You might consult 

with Miss Rat:t1 back there and see if you can get to

gether on the school boards role. 

though. 

it? 

MS. LEEDS: I'll give you a copy of what I said 

SENATOR WILEY: It's not contradictory I take 

MS. LEEDS: No, no, no. I didn't read it. 

SENATOR WILEY: Okay, you ad-libbed. 

MS. LEEDS: Slightly. 

SENATOR WILEY: Fine. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Howard P. Blackman, New Jersey Association 

for Children with Learning Disabilities. 

H 0 W A R D P. B L A C K M A N: 

My name is Howard P. 
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Blackman, State Program Coordinator of the New Jersey 

Association for Children with Learning Disabilities 

and Chairman of the New Jersey Interagency Council 

for the Handicapped. The nine consumer state organi

zations that serve the handicapped, enthusiastically, 

endorse the intent of S-441. Those elected members of 

the legislature who have had an opportunity to serve 

on the Education Committee during the past four years, 

I think, are well aware of our enormous efforts to 

make the thrust of S-441, Mandated Preschool Education, 

a reality. I would like to adhere to the Chair's 

recommendation that we try our best not to repeat 

over and over again the same things that were dis

cussed this morning. So, I would just like to address 

myself, informally, to the Chair about some things 

that have not been mentioned. 

As to some of the things that were said this morning 
particularly. Dr. Ringelheim's testimony, testifying 

to the fact that New Jersey has been identified as a 

leader in the area of special education, I've had 

an opportunity to do a fair amount of travelling in 

the last year, and I think that his statement is very 

much valid. I think it's valid because of the mandated 

nature of our legislation in New Jersey. I think it's 

very important to point out that we, in New Jersey, 

have such sophisticated services for schoolaged children 

not because we are nice people and not because we really 

want to do the very best, but it's because - as Senator 

Beadleston so often likes to point out - the law says 

thou shalt and doesn't say tnou shalt if you have the 

money, it just says you must provide these services. 

I think our history with the permissive nature of 

this legislation, in the past two years, has been very. 

very disappointing. We thought it was going to be a 

step forward~ in many cases it was a step back and I 
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would like to explain that. 

An analysis of the parents and the children 

who were funded by local public school districts, 

below the age of five, if we take a look at some 

of that process of how that was done for that very 

select few, I think that it would be a shocking 

revelation. I'm familiar with some parents that 

have been successful in getting such services for 

their preschool children and all too often it has not 

been made on the basis of the severity of the handi

capped or taking a look at the child to see whether 

or not this youngster would benefit from preschool 

services, but all too often it has been how hostile 

and how antagonistic and how vocal the parents 

were. In short, that meant, what kind of harassing 

tactics have parents been able to muster against 

individual members of boards of education. Often 

boards of education have acceded to parents who have 

resorted to such unfortunate tactics but that was 

the only way that they were able to succeed. I'm 

talking about late evening telephone calls to mem

bers of boards of education, unwanted, uninvited 

visitations to boards of education officers 1 refusing 

to leave; things that have taken a lot of personal 

energy that I think were so unnecessary but, unfortunately, 

that's how the process worked. So, I think what has 

happened in this state, particularly with regards to 

the intent of S-441, the permissive nature of our 

legislation, instead of being an inducement to local 

boards of education - and, I think, the young lady 

before me when she said it was, perhaps, the moral 

obligation of school districts to really gear up for 

this kind of legislation- what has happened instead 

is that this permissive legislation has become very 

discriminatory, not between rich and poor, but between 
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those parents who happen to be articulate, and not, 

between those parents who happen to be a bit more 

sophisticated, and not, between parents who happen 

to be very, very aggressive people, and those who 

aren 1 t. So, this whole history, the past two 

years, I think, has been very unfortunate. I would 

like to press for the mandated component of this 

legislation because of such factors that have taken 

place. I 1 m very, very pleased that the School . 
Boards Association - in a very forceful testimopy 

this morning - have lent their enormous weight to 

this support, and I know they have lobbied and have 

lent a lot of effort in the last few years for S-441. 

The statements that I said this morning weren 1 t meant 

to be discriminatory to individual people from boards 

of education but just to let you know exactly how 

the process, I think, has been subverted in so many 

cases. I think that many members of boards of educa

tion might be looking to the legislature and hoping 

that the legislature will tell them, you must do it1 

because I think they want to do it. 

SENATOR WILEY: Making late at-night telephone 

calls to legislators? Is that--

MR. BLACI~: It might work. 

There is another factor that I think is very 

important to consider. Much of the testimony this 

morning has pointed to some of the research and I 

don 1 t think we have to belabor the point of the importance 

of early identification and, of course, we have also 

discussed some cost factors. There is a little bit of 

a twist to this as well. Last year the interagency 

council sponsored a seminar with representatives from 

almost every state in this union which was held in 

Newark. The topic of the conference was the Economics 

of Handicapping Conditions. With our efforts with 
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redefining the educational system in New Jersey with 

particular emphasis on thorough and c•ffici<'nt, we W(~U' 

trying to identify some of the excess costs involved 

in educating handicapped children. That has been a 

very difficult process. I don't think we've been enormously 

successful, but it is still a process that's ongoing 1 

and we hope that some productivity will come out of 

this. However, it was pointed out over and over again 

during that seminar that rehabilitation at every level 

is a cost effective program. Remediation in the public 

schools is very expensive business. Many children 

who are given the proper kinds of intervention in an 

early childhood sense, before school, tend to need 

less intense services when they enter public schools. 

Now, this is particularly true with the organization 

that I work for -the Association for Children with 

Learning Disabilities - that a number of youngsters 

who have mild handicaps have been given proper treat

ment before they entered school and.as a result, 

required less specialized services when they entered 

school. So, in the long run, yes , we're talking 

about initial capital investment. But over the long 

run - and it's not so long because of the nature of 

these specialized services - they tend to even out, 

and I would say that early intervention is definitely 

a cost effective program. It's less expensive in the 

long run. 

SENATOR WILEY: Do we have any evidence that that 

is true? When you think of the present spectrum from 

age 5 to age 18, let's say, that appropriate intervention 

of age 5 can reproduce and solve problems that, other

wise, would cost you money per year? 

MR. BLACKMAN: Yes. There has been a lot of 

Federal investigation in this area - the Office of 

Early Childhood Education, the Bureau of Education 
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for the Handicapped as well as Dr. Ringelheim's office -

has lots of research data that I have seen) that I 

think would support this testimony. Certainly, nationally, 

there has been more work done, I think, in the area of 

cost effective programs in the area of vocational re

habilitation. It's easier to identify that when a 

person is working, it's less expensive to state agencies 

than to have them not working. But I think it's also 

very relevant to early intervention and there is 

research data at major universities that support this. 

SENATOR WILEY: Just to give you a personal 

reaction, I think that the program ought to be appealing 

on the merits, aside from the finances of i~ that things 

can be done that are helpful to children with the 

recognition that it is going to cost money and the 

willingness to spend the money to do it with, perhaps, 
a hope but not a dependence on saving money later on. 

It's, of course, difficult to assure ourselves that 

we would save money. I have probed a little bit, not 

so much with the financial side in mind as the human 

side, to find what evidence they have that they're not 

just teaching people to live with their handicaps 

but getting them over the barriers and into full utili

zation of their facilities. The statistics are weak 

from what I can find. They don't have much in the way 

of tracking children to find in what numbers they were 

able to remedy their problems. I would be interested 

in whatever you have. 

MR. BLACKMAN: Okay. I will share that with 

the Committee. I would agree with you that it would 

be nice if we can go on the merits of our case and 

to look at the human side. I just wanted to point out 

to the Committee that that has not been enormously 

successful. I think we do have to be conscious of 

the cost effective factor, that it is indeed less ex-
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pensive and it is something that I feel can be 

substantiated. 

SENATOR WILEY: Anything you can give us 

that will fortify that would be appreciated. 

MR. BLACKMAN: I would like to endorse the 

recommended changes that were made this morning by 

Dr. Ringelheim in terms of a deletion of lines 8 

through 13 on the first page. I do not think that 

that is fitting with th~ spirit of S-441. I came 

in a little bit late this morning, in the middle 

of Dr. Ringelheim's testimony, and he had indicated 

that he had made those recommended changes. I'm 

assuming - without repeating - that those changes 

were recommended this morning. I'm open to a response 

from the Committee. Were those changes testified to 

this morning? 

SENATOR WILEY: Did Dr. Ringelheim talk about 

those lines -- that that second paragraph should 

come out? It has not been taken out of the committee 

substitute. For those who are not privy to our 

papers here, they're directinq themselves to the 

proposed second paragraph of 46-6 which says that 

"In addition, each board of education shall also 

identify and ascertain when deemed appropriate by 

the commissioner and according to rules promulgated 

by the commissioner with the approval of the State 

board, those children between the ages of 3 and 5 

who require and who would be benefited by a special 

education program which may prevent their handicap 

from becoming more debilitating". 

MS. BETSY BURR: The department's position -

as Dr. Ringelheim expressed before - was that the 

ages of 5 to 20 in Line 4 should be changed to 3 to 20. 

SENATOR WILEY: Rather than take it in two 

groups. 
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MS. BURR: Therefore, Lines 8 through 13 should 

be omitted. 

SENATOR WILEY: Eight through thirteen on the 

original version. That would have the effect of 

treating 3 through 20 with an even hand. Is that your 

concern, too, that you would be setting up a different 

standard for 3 to 5? 

MR. BLACKMAN: Yes, it is. There is also-

you know - an inference there, I believe, particularly 

in Line 13- "which may prevent their handicap", etc. 

I see nothing to prevent the local child study team 

of a board of education saying, "well, I'm not too sure 

if we provide this youngster with a preschool program 

that he is going to get any worse. So, if he's not 

going to get any worse, why provide him with that 

experience?" I think, again, the experiences that we 

have had in leaving individual interpretations up to 

local boards of education have been very, very disappointing, 

and if we leave that in, I do see that being a factor. 

SENATOR WILEY: It's been very disappointing 

with the older children? 

MR. BLACKMAN: Being very disappointing when 

there is a statement in any permissive or mandated 

piece of legislation which leaves itself open to interpretation. 

Now, the only analogy that I can think of is, right 

now, the law says that a child study team must interpret 

to parents, the findings in terms of testing and 

placement, etc., and, of course, we as consumer 

groups had often thought that this interpretation 

would be a written interpretation. The parent would 

get a statement saying, as a result of our meeting 

this morning, these are our findings. This is why 

we are placing him in a specific program. The over-

whelming number of local public schools say, "well, 

no, that says interpretations so we are going to use 
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an oral interpretation". So many people walk out 

and call me up, or many other people, and say, "gee, 

I'm not too sure what they just told me. I didn't 

understand it". So I would tell that person to call 

up the local child study team and say, "would you 

do me a favor, I would like to share it with my husband 

or share it with another professional: would you put it 

in writing?" The local board of education, through 

the child study team would say, "well, we just don't 

have enough clerical people to put it in writing". So 

with that experience I see local boards - some of 

them - using that as kind of a cop-out saying, well, 

after all he's not going to get any worse and the 

law says, as written. So, I would like to make those 

recommended changes and I would hope that they would 

be considered. 

SENATOR WILEY: If you delete what weLe Lines 8 to 

]_ 3, you're left with the standard which says, "cannot 

be properly accommodated through the school facilities 

11sually provided''? Is that adequate language? 

MR. BLACKMAN: Yes, it is because I think 

the bill then goes on to specify, which I think I'm 

going to address myself to in a minute. 

On Page 3 of the bill - again, I believe that 

Dr. Ringelheim made this recommended change, but I 

want to state it so I can get the statement from the 

Chair - I thought that that was a typographical error 

in Line 45, "under the age of 5". That should be either 

"under the age of 3" or, in Line 43, that "may" should be 

"must", because right now, as stated, those four lines 

say something very different from the bill. It says, 

"the board of education may, and if a local child study 

team so recommends, provide for children under the age 

of 5". Now, I thought the whole intent of S-441 was 

to state the board of education "must". I would like 
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to apologize to the Chair for saying that Dr. Ringel

heim made these comments. I thought he did, but 

your reaction tells me that he didn•t. 

SENATOR WILEY: The may and shall approach is 

still used, but the years have been changed to 3 and 5. 

I 1 m looking at the committee substitute which was 

submitted by Senator Beadleston this morning. 

It now reads, 11 the board of education may, 

and if a child study team so recommends and the 

commissioner approves, shall, provide for children 

between the ages of 3 and 5 11 • 

MR. BLACKMAN: Well, shouldn 1 t that be -must -

the local board of education must provide between the 

ages of 3 and 5? 

SENATOR WILEY: It•s a fair question. The 

Senator seemed to feel this morning that that was 

adequate language. I asked the question that you•ve 

asked, whether you really have a mandated program, 

if it depends on the recommendation of the child study 

team and whether fiscal considerations might enter 

into the recommendation rather than just an educational 

one. He seemed to be content with it. 

MR. BLACIZMAN: Well, I might respectfully sub

mit to the Committee that this exercise, today, in 

your hard efforts in the work and the presentation of 

this bill will be a futile activity. 

SENATOR WILEY: If it•s left the way it is? 

MR. BLACKMAN: Yes, because you•re not changing 

anything. 

SENATOR WILEY: we•re looking at the recommendations -

line by line recommendations - that were in Dr. Ringel

heim•s statement this morning which we didn•t go into in 

detail. LetJs see what they tell us. 

What the department would do is seek to -

it would strike that language which I read to you 
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and would cast it in simpler terms just by sub

stituting 3 for 5 so as to provide equal treatment 

for all ages 3 to 20. They are, in keeping with your 

recommendations. 

MR. BLACKMAN: Yes. Are you saying, Senator 

Wiley, that Line 38 is modified or -deleted7 that 11 may 11 

is now 11 must 11• That, I think, is the crucial issue. 

SENATOR WILEY: No. Referring to Dr. Ringelheim's 

recommendations - looking at Line 38 on Page 3 of 

the original bill - he leaves that as 11 may 11 • But in 

Line 42, he changes the age of 5 - at the end of the 

line - to the age of 3. 

MS. BURR: He is referring to over the age of 

20. 

SENATOR WILEY: And under 3. It's now over 

20 and under 5. In effect, it's expanding the manda

tory brackets and shrinking the permissive areas. 

MR. BLACKMAN: Okay. 

SENATOR WILEY: I take it your feeling is 

that if you leave it up to the local child study team 

and just depend on their finding that something is 

necessary, they're going to use that as a means of 

not implementing the act in part? 

MR. BLACKMAN: Yes. Except I would accept 

that recommendation that 38 to 42 - Lines 38 to 42 -

apply to children who have handicapping conditions 

under the age of 3. I think that fits in the spirit 

of the bill, making that permissive. 

SENATOR WILEY: I understand that, yes. 

MR. BLACKMAN: Has the Committee accepted that? 

SENATOR WILEY: No. What's happened, mechanically, 

is we have this original bill before us, and as of yes

terday or today, we have this proposed committee sub

stitute which has been submitted by the sponsor and 

we have not had a chance to analyze it. 
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MR. BLACI~: Okay. I would just like to 

emphasize, again, if that language is not modified, 

this will change nothing, nothing at all. 

SENATOR WILEY: You're for a simple change, 

make 5, 3. 

MR. BLACKMAN: Yes. 

On Page 1 -- and this will be the last issue 

I will address myself to. I'm sorry for taking 

up so much time. On Page 1, Lines 5 and 6, "children 

who are classified as handicapped under this chapter 

except those so mentally retarded as to be neither 

educable or trainable". Now, I know that this is 

a very controversial issue, but I think it's very, 

very essential to the spirit of this bill. I would 

recommend the striking out of any classification 

which, in the language of this bill, would be dis

criminatory to a large number of youngsters. Again, 

that's leaving it up to too many different people to 

decide just who would be excluded in the spirit of 

this bill. I would also suggest that if it is struck 

out, that it is within the recommendations made by 

the department for redefinition of classifications 

under "thorough and efficient". They have submitted 

their recommendation which strikes out two categories 

which have been under fire in this state for a number 

of years. One, of course, is not being able to pro

fit from a school experience. The second category 

is, "is neither educable nor trainable". I would hope 

that the Committee would consider this very seriously. 

There are many things, in the course of the past few 

years, that have suggested to professionals that we 

still have not defined our tools of measurement so 

sharply as to be able to conclude that a chiid is 

so profoundly retarded that he would not be able to 

benefit fiDm a school experience. We'd suggest that 
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it would be a preventive measure, as well for this 

state, in that if this sentence remains, as well 

as in the rules and regulations, there will be 

litigatiqn that will be brought forth against local 

boards of education in the state. I, of course, 

recommend the decision in Pennsylvania, the famous 

PARC case- which I'm sure you are familiar with-

the Pennsylvania Association for Retarded Children 

vs. the State Board of Education of the State of 

Pennsylvania) where they maintained this category, 

as we do in Jerse~ and the courts have struck that 

down as being unconstitutional. So now all youngsters, 

regardless of how severely retarded they might be, 

are the responsibility of the local public school 

district to serve. We talk about the importance 

of early intervention There is a youngster - a 

14 year old youngster in Susquahanna County, Pennsylvania, 

who was classified as profoundly retarded and had 

never been inside the walls of a school building. 

As a result of this decision -- I might also add 

that this youngster was non-ambulatory, which meant 

he never walked. There is no physical reason for 

him not being able to walk. He just never walked. 

He spent his whole life in bed. As a result of 

this decision in Pennsylvania, this youngster was 

brought to school in a wheelchair. You might ask 

yourself, how could a youngster so profoundly re-

tarded be programmed within the public school. Well, 

they started with an hour-a-day with individual in

struction. Within six months that youngster was 

walking, actually, walked to aw.3. from school. We 

think the disaster of that classification of pro-

foundly retarded and then we think of early intervention. 

I would ask all of us to just examine what early 

intervention could have done for this youngster. So, 
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to summarize, I think that it would be in line, with 

the department's recommendations ln thorough and 

efficient, that that category be eliminated for con

sideration for S-441. 

With that, I would like to thank you for 

your attention. 

SENATOR WILEY: It might be an area of greater 

need in this age group. The testimony earlier in 

the morning was that in these lower ages, you're only 

talking about half the number of handicapped children 

because you have to confine yourself to the ones 

that you can readily identify. These would be readily 

identifiable. 

The name of your association is Children with 

Learning Disabilities. We have something between 

ten and fifty thousand children in the state who have 

language disabilities -foreign-speaking - is that of 

your concern? 

MR. BLACKMAN: Excuse me, what was that last 

portion? 

SENATOR WILEY: Children whose predominant 

language is not English, is that within your sphere? 

MR. BLACKMAN: Not primarily; of course, we 

are very much concerned with children who use English 

as a second language, of course. That's a whole 

different bag. Of course, the experience in this 

state is that there are many youngsters, particularly 

in the northern part of the state, many Cuban families 

and Puerto Rican families who were being programmed 

in classes for the retarded because they couldn't pass 

the entrance test for, let's say, the fifth grade or 

fourth grade. Of course, that's been largely cleaned 

up. Our association is primarily interested in any 

child who has a learning disability or neurological 

impairment. 

SENATOR WILEY: Very fine. Thank you h · very muc , Slr. 
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Are there any other people who wish to testify? (Affirmative 

response). We have Mr. Frank Dolan and Mr. Jack Elmer. 

Erika Abbott? 

E R I K A A B B 0 T T: I am Erika Abbott, 

I represent the Easter Seals Society for Crippled 

Children and Adults of New jersey. 

SENATOR WILEY: Very nice to have you with us. 

MS. ABBOTT: I will leave most of my testimony 

to Mr. Elmer who also represents Easter Seals, but he 

represents the Morris County Chapter. 

SENATOR WILEY: Yes. 

MS. ABBOTT: We strongly endorse S-441, and we 

thank you for being able to tell you about it. I have 

heard the testimony of Mr. Scagnelli and Mr. Donoghue, 

and I will hang myself on their coattails because 

everything they have said I would repeat, and I don•t 

want to keep you. 

Easter Seal, at this point, is 1n its 26th year 

in New Jersey, and we service about 20,000 a year. We 

really feel that we have seen the advantages o£ early 

identification of problems and the appropriate programs, 

and we feel this is extremely important that they are 

given the chance to take part in the preschool programs. 

We have had, besides Morris County, programs in Union 

and in Bergen. One of the most interesting programs 

has been a preschool program in Union County which includes 

severely handicapped with non-handicapped children and 

it has worked out very well. 

I thank you for letting me speak, and we cer

tainly hope that this comes through. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you very much. Nice to 

have you with us. 

Mr. Dolan, Bordentown Township Board of Education. 

F R A N K D 0 L A N: Good afternoon. I 1 m 
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Frank Dolan. I am the Vice-President of the Board 

of Education in the Township of Bordentown. I'm 

representing my board. I have also been asked 

to appear by the New Jersey School Boards Association. 

I am a member of,the School Boards Association's 

Special Education Committee. I'm also the Public 

Information Chairman of the Easter Seal Society 

for Burlington County, New Jersey. 

I am not a professional by any stretch of the 

imagination in the field of early childhood education 

or of education of the handicapped. Professionally, 

I am an architect~ for a living, I am an Air Force 

officer. I would like to tell you, however, how 

at least one board of education - mine - feels on 

the subject because, after all, if this legislation 

is passed, it will be in our hands and to the lay 

control of education and the board of education, 

that the implementation will pass. My board has 

a very, very high interest in special education. 

We're a small community, rather rural community, but 

we run three special education classes in Bordentown, 

one for the neurologically impaired and one for perceptually 

impaired and one for the multi-handicapped. We hope, 

shortly, to add a fourth category - educable classes -

in our township. We could contract this sort of thing 

out as a small board of education, but we're determined 

not to because· we feel that we can reduce the trauma 

on the kids of this sort by keeping them as close to 

home as possible. We are also now working very, very 

actively on mainstreaming handicapped kids in our school -

in and out of special classes - putting them in with the 

regular children. We are very active in the program in trying 
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to eliminate architectural barriers in our school. 

We don't, right .1t the present time I have enough 

kids to warrant orthopedically handicapped class. 

We want to be ready should we do. We have a very 

active program of cooperation with the parents/ 

monthly meetings of parents, teachers, and our child 

study team. We've held graduate work for our 

teachers in behavior modification techniques to 

better enable us to handle our special education 

programs. What I'm trying to tell you is that 

we're concerned about this area/ and I don't really 

think our board is all that unusal. Our board 

takes this responsibility very1 very ser~ously. We 

looked over legislation S-441 as a board/ and we 

determined it was very worthwhile for me to come on 

down here and say how wholeheartedly we support it. 

I recently attended the School Board Association~ 

President's Convention in Cherry Hill 1 New Jersey, -

it was last month - and this was a topic, a very 

frequent topic/ of conversation among the school 

board presidents there and/ generally, my peers seemed -

almost to the man or woman - completely in favor 

of the spirit of this legislation. New Jersey 

School Board Association has long held this as 

one of their major legislative goals in our 

legislative assembly meetings. 

Some boards are already supporting preschool 

education. Possibly/ a word might be in order for 

those who are not concerning the mitigating circumstances 

involved. At present, there is a lack of clear regulation -

clear rules and regulations - on funding for children 

under the age of 3. My board, in the past, has funded 

for special education under the age of 3, and we had 

to do it without state aid. I now know that the rules 

and regulations in this area have changed somewhat but 
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they still are really relatively confusing, and special 

education is very expensive. Some of our children -

special education children - cost us as much as $4,000.00 

a year. It's not an unusal circumstance at all and, as 

you can very well envision, we have a lot of school 

boards in the state; our budgets are not very large. 

In an area of a board such a mine could easily have 

four or five children identified in a preschool pro

gram, and four or five children times $4,000.00 a year 

or so could be a very large percentage of our budget, 

and budgets are difficult in this particular day and age. 

Our budgets - the school board budgets - are probably 

the last remnants of grassroots democracy in America 

where the bugets are actually put before the people. 

So, possibly, the recalcitrants of some boards in 

this are may be understandable. The answer, I think, 

lies in this legislation in mandating such education 

and providing state support in two areas, both in the 

area of program expertise and definitive assistance 

1n the funding. We think that all the tools are there 

or that these tools are well within the state of the 

art of development. As I said earlier, .Im not an 

expert, but I have taken the time to review the litera

ture and it does lead me to believe that we can really 

adequately identify those kids who can benefit from 

the educational experienc~ at the earlier age an~ again, 

a review leads me to believe that early education 

intervention can reduce learning - and probably more 

important - living impairments and can result in 

higher achievements. This makes sense to us from 

every standpoint, from a humanistic, from a sociological, 

and even from that economic standpoint. Right now 40 

percent of the handicapped people of America are under 

employed. These percentages can be reduced, lives of 

handicapped people can be more normalized, they can 
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be allowed to contribute more to society and this 

legislation will help. At least one school board -

mine - is very definitely ready to implement it, and 

I have the feeling, sir, the majority of the school 

boards are ready to implement it. We urge your 

support. 

SENATOR WILEY: Before you appeared, the 

School Boards Association testified that it felt that 

enacting the bill in its present form would be a mis

take because it would go into effect immediately 

and would be applicable the school year beginning 

September, 1974, and that laying that financial 

obligation on the boards that have already made up 

their budgets would be intolerable. 

MR. DOLAN: This would be difficult for us 

because our budgets have already been made, and they 

are relatively tight. Some consideration should be 

given to putting it into a proper budget cycle, yes, 

sir, I would say that's a necessity. Some of the 

comments which were talked of earlier concerning 

portions of the legislation which might need to be 

changed in no way seem to present any difficulty as 

far as I could see. I could not really envision a 

child study team being quite so unprofessional as to 

allow budgetary constraints to get in their way when 

they were classifying children. However, should there 

be some thought along this line, I cannot see how 

any school board or the school Boards Association 

would object to making the language mandatory. 

SENATOR WILEY: All right, sir. We appreciate 

your being here. 

MR. DOLAN: Good, thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you. 

Mr. Jack Elmer. Nice to have you with us, sir. 

J 0 H N E L M E R: It's nice to be here, sir. 
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My name is John Elmer, Program Coordinator, 

Morris County Easter Seal Society for Crippled 

Children and Adults, Morris Plains, New Jersey. 

So far, I can only associate myself with 

those changes in the rules that have been promulgated 

or suggested by the ACLD. Morris County Easter Seal 

would be in favor of that. What I'm doing here is to 

tell you that we have run preschool programs for the 

physically handicapped for nearly seven years now and 

during that period of time, a great number of children 

have gone through our programs. I could give you 

individual cases about Johnny who did this and Suzy 

who did that, but I'm sure you've had enough of that 

and you need no more. I want you to think about the 

kinds of things that happen to a handicapped child 

who is not involved in a preschool program and I 

think, perhaps, that was not emphasized this morning. 

A handicapped child - between the ages of birth and 

six years as things stand in modern American society, 

if he is not involved, actively, in some kind of a 

program - grows up, essentially, without playmates 

and there are few mothers of normal children who will 

encourage their children to play with handicapped. 

At this point, there is, frankly, a depth of superstition~ 

prejudice, ignorance, among much of the community 

about the handicapped. The normal child does not get 

a big kick out of playing with handicapped children of 

his own age because they can't keep up, and he may quickly turn 

them off. The handicapped child does not necessarily 

care to play with normal children because he knows he 

can't keep up and he knows he doesn't understand the 

rules. Also, he's subjected to a tremendous amount 

of teasing, a tremendous amount of cruelty still within 

the child population. They haven't yet learned 
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tact, they haven't yet learned diplomacy and you 

get a lot of this-- gee, you're funny looking, or 

how come s~its coming out of your mouth all tho 

time which, you know, a handicapped child doesn't 

need to hear twice before he suddenly doesn't 

want any part of this. 

Lastly, perhaps the mother of a handicapped 

child does not necessarily encourage her child to 

play with normal children. She knows he's teased. 

Also, she feels guilty about having a handicapped 

child and she tries to'give him all of her love and 

attention, all of her affection, which results, of 

course, in over-protecting the child, the result of 

which is he gets all of her affection while she's 

doing the dishes, making the beds, getting break-

fast, getting lunch, getting dinner, talking on 

the telephone to her girlfriends, talking with the 

people who come over, going over to her mother, and 

shopping. What I'm saying is he doesn't get any 

attention at all or very damn little. Okay. This 

results in a child then that grows up in an essentially 

stimulus free environment. He grows up on the living 

room floor, very possibly in a playpen, hearing little 

language, seeing very few sights, touching very few 

objects, learning absolutely nothing about his e~lviron

ment. He does not have access to a tremendous pool 

of knowledge that you or I learned from. We did not 

learn all of our colors from mother and father. We 

did not learn textures from mother and father. We 

learned a few, but most of them we learned playing 

with other children when Sally told us about her blue 

dress and Johnny mentioned when he fell on the concrete, 

it was rough. Father hadn't taken us out and said this 

is rough concrete. We learned it from other children. 

If you're a handicapped child and do not play with 

35 A 



other children, you do not learn all of these 

things. The result of this is a psychologist 

comes in at the age of six and gives you a test. 

One of the questions, for instance, on that test 

may be - you must wait on the street corner until 

the light turns -- and then there's a blank. All 

right, the child may know perfectly well that on 

green you go and on red you stop but in reading 

the test, when he gets to the word wait, he may 

be thrown completel~ not having this pool of know

ledge he may not be able to interpret the words 

that go into make up the test. I defy any psycho

logist to come up with an accurate test on a handi

capped cerebral palsy child who may have communications 

difficulties, so is non-verbal. This is one reason -

by the way - why we're not terribly in favor of the 

"neither trainable nor educable" classification. I 

just don't think at this age - at the age of 3,4,5, -

you can say that any child is not educable nor train

able. All right, so psychologically, these children 

are behind the eight ball to begin with. Their potential 

cannot be tested and their potential may be indelibly 

harmed by not getting at their best learning years -

the years between birth and I think something like 

eight or nine - by simply not getting the information 

that normal children would be getting. 

In addition to this, their social development 

is tremendously harmed because there is no social 

development you see. There are no other children 

for them to play with. If you do not play with other 

children, you do not learn that there are other people 

in the world who have wants and desires that must be 

considered. If you don't play with other children, 

you don't learn a very simple lesson like, you don't 

push bigger kids because bigger kids can push back. 
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If you sit at home, you learn only on0 thing, that 

you ar0 the center of the world's ,1tb,nt ion insofar 

as attention lS available, and this is tremendously 

handicapping to a child who, at the age of six, suddenly 

enters a school program and discovers, my god, there 

are 25 other children my age in this world, and I 

scream and holler for what I want. It's absolute 

utter- chaos, and this is why school districts often 

can't handle these children and have to place them 

out into other programs as you heard mentioned here 

earlier. 

Another thing that they lack by their in

ability to develop with normal children is a sense 

of discipline, that you don't eat whenever you feel 

like screaming and hollering for a cookie, you eat 

when it's snack time or you do painting when it's 

painting time or you do drawing when it's drawing 

time, and these are the kinds of things that they 

can get in a preschool program, obviously. 

One of the last and, perhaps, mo~t important 

things - although you will find an occasional psychologist 

that will disagree with me, I don't know how- is a 

lack of communications ability that we see in these 

children. If the child grows up, essentially, in 

his living room, he does not develop a need to communicate 

with other people. In other words, if you're with other 

children -you're three years of age now, and you 

want your turn at bat - you pretty darn well have to 

say, it's my turn. If you just make signs and gestures, 

nobody is going to pay the least bit of attention to 

you. So, the encouragement is there to learn to 

communicate. Unfortunately, when these children grow 

up at home, their signs are very quickly recognized 

by their parents who do not, usually, force them into 

speaking because they're not sure where their handicap 
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extends. So what will happen is, Johnny will go 

out into the kitchen and point at the refrigerator 

and go, "eh", and mother will say, "oh, you need 

your orange juice", and she 1 ll run over and she 1 ll 

get his orange juice and she 1 ll pour it out for him 

and he 1 ll go out perfectly happy. He has communicated 

with mother. Father will come home and she says, 

"isn•t that cute, he asked for his orange juice." 

No way did he ask for his orange juice; he gestured 

and he grunted. But this was sufficient within that 

context. Once he gets out into the cold, cold world 

at age six, he does not have sufficient communication, 

and he is so far behind in getting it that it may be 

another three or four years before he catches up and 

in the meantime, again, think what he•s lost~ So, 

all of these things then handicap even further an 

already handicapped child who has no preschool kind of 

experience where he can get his social skills, he can 

get a taste of discipline, he can get some access to 

the pool of knowledge that he lacks. 

Lastly, communications stimulation can be 

provided for him. Now, these things are provided 

both directly to the child and to the parent. In 

other words, one of the most important parts of any 

preschool program is educating the parent along with 

it and teaching the parent that, mother, you must 

stimulate his communication, you mustnot allow him to 

gesture and sign if communication is within his ability, 

and the Doctor will tell them that. She must know that 

he is always going to be restricted in cultural oppor

tunities. He is simply not going to be able to get out 

on his own and get a lot of information in the world, 

so the parents must be encouraged to stimulate the 

child culturally and intellectually. Take him to 

museums, take him to paintings, take him to a song fest, 
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take him to anything, and give him as much stimulation 

as possible so that, eventually, he can choose the route 

he needs to take. 

And, lastly, independence. These children have 

to be made independent because, eventually, mother and 

father are not going to be here but the child, in all 

probability, will. Mother and father do not realize 

at age 2, 3, 4 how important it is for him to be in

dependent of them. It's cute for mother to dress 

him at age six. It's nowhere near as cute when she's 

still doing it at age 36. These are the kinds of things 

that the parent can get out of a preschool education 

program just as well as the child. Incidentally, also, 

we try to give our parents child management techniques 

because, frankly, a very clever handicapped child runs 

his family. If they're not very, very careful, he 

makes most of the major decisions in the family, unless 

they learn proper management techniques. Once they do, 

things go much more smoothly, the marriage has a tendency 

to much more_smoothly, the problems do not arise that 

are constantly adding friction to an already difficult 

situation, and by getting at the guilt feelings with 

a psychologist or a good social worker, we can do 

away with some of this overprotectiveness. 

Lastly, there is no expense probably greater 

than a handicapped child. He needs wheelchairs and 

he outgrows them. Wheelchairs may cost two to four 

hundred dollars for standard wheelchairs and up to 

a thousand dollars for an electric wheelchair, which 

a child often needs. If the child puts on weight, 

special conveyances may need to be the family car. 

They may, actually, need a van for a muscular dystrophy 

child, for instance, who cannot help but weigh 250 to 

300 pounds, and you simply cannot transport this child 

in a normal car. If the family a going to go anywhere, 
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they need vans, they need lifts, they need hoyer lifts 

in the home, at seven or eight hundred dollars. If 

they need hearing aids, it's $850.00. If they also 

have to provide preschool education, they can't 

afford it. At Easter Seal, they don't have to. At 

Easter Seal, they pay us what they feel they can 

afford, and for many of them it's nothing. But it 

cost me a minimum of $2,550.00 for every child I 

educate in my program, and I have 18 of them. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you , sir. 

Did you take part at all in that project, Extra 

Points in Morris County? 

MR. ELMER: It went on around us. We did not 

hear about it until much of their work had been done. 

We are now attempting to make use of their facilities, 

primarily, through Denville through the setup that 

they have there 4 although, some of these things we 

can do also. 

SENATOR WILEY: Very fine, sir. Oh, I'm sorry. 

Could you hold on one minute? 

MR. ELMER: Yes. 

SENATOR WILEY: This is Mr. John White. 

MR. JOHN WHITE: Your eloquence encourages me 

to ask this question. You mention child population. 

Other people today, I assume, were referring to that 

by the use of the word mainstream. Most of the 

arguments - and this is known by us all, I'll just 

restate it - in special education always assume that 

the burden of proof is upon the child in special edu

cation. In other words, it's his problem. But some 

of the things that you said today, at least, implied 

that there is also a mainstream problem or, indeed, 

it might be a mainstream problem, the child population 

and the values of the child population or , at least, 
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the other half of the equation when you get to the 

threshold of the mainstream? 

MR. ELMER: I am not an advocate of out and 

out mainstreaming. Now, don't everybody misuder

stand my words. How did mainstreaming come about? 

How did the present situation come about? The 

present situation of specialized classes came about 

because early on in education- and I'm going back 

maybe twenty years ago, which is not early on but 

it's a while ago - everybody was mainstreaming. All 

of the children were in whatever classes were available 

and suddenly somebody said, oh, my god, this isn't 

working out, so we need to have special classes. 

So, indeed, they had special classes. All right, 

they went overboard and thereare children in special 

classes who could well be in normal classes and 

should be, and this is one thing we encourage. But 

you are not going to overcome the evils of the pre-

sent situation by certainly doing away with special 

classes and putting everybody back where they were 

twenty years ago. You need a delicately balanced 

combination and balance both for a child's ability 

and the pyschological aspects of any particular case. 

Every child who is handicapped physically is handi

capped emotionally because of the frustrations of 

getting along within his handicap and because of 

frustrations imposed on him by the normal society. 

Again, I refer to the children who have to play with 

them. If you have ever been in one of these edu-

cation classes in a regular junior high - an educable 

class - they're mainstreamed in many cases. They 

have a homebase and then they go out to the seventh 

grade for art and they go to another class for history 

with normal students, and as they walk down the hall, 

they get the bit, "oh, they're the retards going through, 
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and they're the retards getting on their bus," and, 

frankly, it's just not always the most civilized 

aspect of American education right now. 

MR. WHITE: My question was interested ln, 

is there any programatic attempts to deal with the 

mainstream problems, the stereotyping--

MR. ELMER: Not to my knowledge. 

MR. WHITE: -- for example, the public or 

mass communication only, recently, in the last few 

years has dared, even program anything with mentally 

retarded children. Last night there was a magnificent 

program on it. 

MR. ELMER: And there's another one coming 

up on Channel 11 in two or three days that I think 

will be worthwhile. 

MR. WHITE: I've seen advertisements on TV 

that my own children have been impressed with. 

MR. ELMER: In regard to 

MR. WHITE: In regard to mentally retarded 

children. 

MR. ELMER: Yes. The Association for Retarded 

Children is an advocacy agency for much of this as Easter 

Seal is for the physically handicapped. We try to 

break it up into aspects and attack those in which we 

are more expert. One of the ways that we slop over 

is the fact that many physically handicapped children 

are retarded by the same thing that has handicapped 

them physically. Cerebral palsy, for instance, often 

results in a mental retardation as well as a physical 

retardation. Minimal brain disfunctioned children 

were involved in as is ACLD simply because the schools 

are not able to keep up with the amount of children 

who are perceptually damaged. They have one learning dis

ability specialist~ they have two thousand kids. So, 

we're involved, deeply, in that kind of thing. There 
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is a great deal more to be done than is being done 

and I think we're just now beginning to see. It has 

to be done, first of all, with the adults. It also 

has to be done concomitantly with the children in 

getting to them and letting them know that just be-

cause a person is handicapped, doesn't mean he's "different" • 

SENATOR WILEY: Thank you, Mr. Elmer. 

If the legislature doesn't do a good job in 

this area, it won't be because it didn't have good 

advice and counsel. Are there any other people 

who wish to speak? (No response) As far as my 

list shows, we've touched all of the bases and heard 

from all of the people who expressed an interest in 

appearing. 

We'll close the public hearing then. The bill 

remains before the Committee. We will have a transcript 

prepared of the testimony that has been presented and 

provide an opportunity for that to be reviewed and 

considered. The bill will then be considered by the 

Committee at a date to be determined. We have meetings 

every Monday, at least, - every Monday morning - and 

it will be on the agenda at the appropriate time for 

the deliberation of the Committee. If anyone has any 

supplemental comments or thoughts that occur to you as 

you're turning over in your sleep this evening and 

you wish you had said that, let us know. The book 

won't be closed for awhile, and we'd be delighted to 

hear any supplemental comments if you have any further 

statements you would like to submit in writing. We're 

grat~ful to all of you. 

Thank you very much. The hearing is closed. 

(Hearing Concluded) 
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SUBMITTED BY IRMA LEEDS 

W. VAN PELT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

P A.IUMUS, NEW JERSEY 

SCHOOL BU.t~INEMS ADMIN18TBA.TOR .. SECRETARY 

261-'7800 

Gentlemen -

TESTIMONY ON BEHALF OF SENATE BILL #441 

APRIL 24, 1974 

PARAMUS IIIGII SCHOOL 
E. CENTURY ROAD 

PARAM.UH, NEW JERSEY 07652 

I come to you today, not only representing the Paramus Board of Education, 

but also representing the Boards of Education of Bergen County. As Legislation 

Chairman, I have polled the individual representatives and have only heard 

affirmative responses to this bill. Both from econo~c and moral responsibilities 

to the taxp~ers, we hope to see this bill enacted. 

Early detection will help prevent reinforcement of the handicap i·rhich as you 

know becomes ·more debilitating as time passes and no aid is given. I am particu-

larly concerned with children who have language development and commm1ication 

handicaps who, if they had the opportunity to socialize and communicate with many 

children in a controlled and structured atmosphere, could begin to develop sldlls 

which would lessen their degree of handicap. Children with poor social skills who 

have difficulty interacting, sharing, cooperating and participating with other 

children continue this type of deprivation if they do not become part of a social 

group. It is also important for Boards of Education to identifY all the handi-

capped children in the district, regardless of age. Page 1, Lines 8 through 13, 

makes it·mandatory to seek out children, at least do¥m to the age of three and, 

with approval, provide them with a program. Even if the program is not provided, 

local Boards would still be aware of the children vrith handicaps and be able to 

initiate long term plans. 
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Testimony on Behalf of Senate Bill #441, April 24, 1974 Page 2 

I have two suggestions, however, that might help to facilitate the implementa-

tion of this program. Page 2, Line 19, "instructional program to privately 

operated non-profit day classes". Would it not be preferable to eliminate the 

non-profit aspect and allow local districts to send such students to schools 

profitably or non-profitably operated, as long as they are approved for this 

program and they are willing to accept tuition not to exceed the maximums set by 

the State Department of Education? 

Page 2, Lines 27 through 30. Could you not include some other appropriate 

facility? Sometimes it is advisable to have individual instruction for a child 

in a Public Library with approval of that Library or the study room of a museum 

with the approval of that museum. 

I hope these suggestions will be considered.in the final wording of this bill 

but please understand that I support this Bill and its objectives to further help 

the children of New Jersey. 

Home Address: W. 83 Ridgewood Avenue 
Paramus, Bergen County 

IRMA LEEDS 
Trustee 
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